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Corporate Information (continued)
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Chairman’s Statement
TERE

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present our annual
report for the year ended 31 March 2015 (the “Financial Year
2015").

Our Group, founded in 1996, is an experienced general
and foundation contractor serving the Hong Kong building
and construction industries by offering quality and flexible
solution to our customers. Over the years, our customer base
has been expanding through word of mouth, with most of
our customers being repeating customers. Using our ability
to solve different complex issues in various projects, we have
built trust and credibility with our customers. We definitely
could not have done it without the support from our working
partners, whom have been working with us job by job over
years. Implementing our self-developed success formula in
project management also enabled us to withstand every
predicament in the past.

In recent years, there have been vibrant construction activities
in both the private and public sectors. Despite various special
stamp duties and mortgage loan ratio controls in force
in Hong Kong private housing sector, the local demand
remains strong. We therefore foresee that there would
be considerable potential growth in construction industry.
Coinciding with the market focus on construction companies
in the Hong Kong stock market, we believe it is time to go
public for further expansion. Our shares were listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 16 April
2015. The listing not only provided additional capital funding
but also reinforced our bargaining power for further banking
facilities, allowing us to undertake sizeable projects in the
future. We would like to thank our professional parties,
customers, working partners, advisors and employees for
their contribution to our listing.

We recorded positive growth in after-tax net profit for the
Financial Year 2015 to HK$72.7 million taken into account of
the listing expense of HK$11.3 million. Excluding the listing
expenses of HK$11.3 million, net profit for the Financial
Year 2015 was HK$84.0 million. During the Financial Year
2015, we have been awarded five foundation projects with
total value of HK$519.1 million. Besides, six foundation
projects have been completed with income contribution
to the Group. Together with by stage incomes contributed
from other projects in progress, our revenue remained stable
at HK$386.7 million compared with HK$381.8 million of
last financial year. As at 31 March 2015, we still had nine
foundation projects in progress worth HK$786.1 million.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EFEHE (B

Looking ahead, we will continue to adhere to our strategy of
focusing on design and build projects and we are committed
to expanding our operation scale. Our management team is
convinced that we will continue to build value over medium
to long term for our shareholders.

Lau Pak Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015
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Highlights
i

HK$'m 386.7 55

HK$381.8m in FY14
—E-NBREEA3BISHEET

HK$'m 712.7 BEAETT

Up HK$11.7m from FY14
BR-ZE-—NyREELENNMIEEET

REVENUE Yt A

Hks0.114 =%

Up HK$0.019 from FY14
B-_Z-NBBFEEEN0.019%E T

NET PROFIT ;E X4

Hks'm 84.0F3&nx

Up HK$23.0m from FY14
BTN REEEM23.08E8ET

EARNINGS PER SHARE SR Z X

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN FY 2015
—R-HAMBEEENR

/— 29.5%
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NET PROFIT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is engaged as a contractor in the foundation
industry in Hong Kong, undertaking foundation works as
well as associated works including demolition works, site
formation works, ground investigation field works and
general building works for local customers.

Business Review

During the year ended 31 March 2015 (the “Financial Year
2015"), the Group was engaged to undertake foundation
and associated works in the private sector construction
projects in Hong Kong, with an emphasis on design and build
projects and on undertaking the role as a main contractor.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group was awarded
eight foundation projects with an aggregate contract sum
of HK$649.6 million. During the Financial Year 2015, these
projects started contributing revenue to the Group and
four of them were completed. Together with two projects
awarded in the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2013, the
Group has completed a total of six projects. Besides, five
additional foundation projects were awarded in the Financial
Year 2015 with a total contract sum of HK$519.1 million.
One of the newly awarded projects started contributing
revenue to the Group.

As at 31 March 2015, there were nine foundation projects
on hand with the outstanding contract sum amounting
to HK$786.1 million. Apart from two projects which are
expected to be completed in the year ending 31 March
2017, the remainders are expected to be completed in the
forthcoming financial year. Below set out a list of projects
completed during the Financial Year 2015 and those which
are still in progress as at 31 March 2015:
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Year of award/project Role Type of contract Status
EBRFE EA Al aHER R
Year 2011-2012
—E—ECF—FF
Zones 3B & 2D New World Centre, Sub-contractor Design and build Completed
Tsim Sha Tsui DEE Rt MR BxL
KRYPEFHERPOE3BR2DE
Year 2012-2013
—E— BT —FF
Ma Tau Wai Road, To Kwa Wan Main contractor Design and build Completed
TIVE GRS BAGER Rt Mk RN
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(continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
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FIREFREBEF RTHAFE
Heung Yip Road, Aberdeen
BRTEEE

Tseung Kwan O Lot 95

B E R EE 95 M B}

Tseung Kwan O Lot 97

K EREE 97 M B}

Peel Street/Graham Street, Central
PIRBAIE,ZEE

Russell Street, Causeway Bay
MREE RS

Hillwood Road, Tsim Sha Tsui
LR ILARGE

Hing Hon Road, Pok Fu Lam
SEERMEDEE

Year 2014-2015
TR - —AFF
Aberdeen Street, Central
FIRBEAE
Perkins Road, Happy Valley
S b 1 R S
A Kung Ngam Road, Shau Kei Wan
BHEEMQEE
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai
BFERKER
Fuk Chak Street and Ka Shin
Street, Tai Kok Tsui
ANABEEHERZESN
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Main contractor
HEEERg
Main contractor
1R
Main contractor
BARE
Main contractor
BAAER
Main contractor
EEGERY
Main contractor
HEGER
Main contractor

HEEERg

Main contractor
“BEGERg
Main contractor
BEER
Main contractor
EGER
Main contractor
AR
Main contractor

R

Design and build
Rt MsE

Build only
et

Build only
[Eesi

Design and build
Rt M EsE
Design and build
AT M iEiE
Design and build
AT MiEiE

Build only
=S

Design and build
Rt M EsE
Design and build
At MEiE
Design and build
BEt s

Build only
=S

Design and build
AT M iEE

Business Review (continued) HEFEERE (E)
Year of award/project Role Type of contract Status
ERFE EH A aRER IR
Year 2013-2014
—ECE_FIFEE
Queen’s Road Central and Main contractor Build only Work in progress
Stanley Street, Central MR [Ef=ses pe=

Work in progress
Ze3Ed
Completed
RN
Completed
2xEL

Work in progress
T

Completed
23T
Completed
23T

Work in progress

Rz

Work in progress
i
Work in progress
=
Work in progress
R
Work in progress
Ze3Ed
Work in progress

iz



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRE D (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Recent Development

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange
on 16 April 2015 (the “Listing”). The Listing not only provided
additional capital funding but also reinforced the Group's
bargaining power for further banking facilities, allowing the
Group to undertake sizeable projects in the future.

Subsequent to the Listing, the Group is fulfilling its
commitment to expand its operation scale by purchasing
certain construction equipments worth approximately
HK$31.0 million. Since the end of the Financial Year 2015
and up to the date of this report, the Group has been
awarded a new foundation project in Central, which is
expected to be completed in the year ending 31 March 2017.

Financial Review

During the Financial Year 2015, there were 21 projects
contributing a revenue of HK$386.7 million, whereas in
the last financial year a revenue of HK$381.8 million was
contributed by 16 projects. Despite the number of projects is
greater in the Financial Year 2015 than that in 2014, given a
number of projects in the Financial Year 2015 were still in the
early stage of construction, the bulk of the contract value of
these projects had not been reflected in the revenue recorded
in the Financial Year 2015.

Final payments of several completed projects were certified
during the Financial Year 2015, with additional contract sums
agreed and granted to the Group. This contributed additional
revenue to the Group, resulting in an overall increase in
gross profit by HK$31.6 million to HK$114.2 million for the
Financial Year 2015 compared to HK$82.6 million of last
financial year.

Administrative and other operating expenses increased by
HK$13.7 million to HK$26.1 million, compared with HK$12.4
million of last financial year, which was mainly due to the
listing expenses incurred in the Financial Year 2015. Listing
expenses borne by the Company amounted to HK$26.6
million, of which HK$11.3 million were charged to the profit
or loss of the Group during the Financial Year 2015. Net profit
increased by HK$11.7 million to HK$72.7 million compared
to HK$61.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2014. By
excluding the listing expenses of HK$11.3 million, net profit
for the Financial Year 2015 was HK$84.0 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRES T (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Highly regulated industry

The foundation industry is a highly regulated industry and
the Group is required to maintain certain registrations under
the laws of Hong Kong. In order to renew and maintain
these registrations, the Group is required to comply with
certain criteria set by the relevant governmental department
and authorities such as the Buildings Department and the
Development Bureau. These include the maintenance of
certain financial criteria such as working capital level, the
adequacy of our management structure and the appropriate
experience and qualification of our personnel.

Any suspension of or a failure to maintain or renew the
Group's registrations could materially and adversely affect the
Group's business.

Uncertainty in construction progress

Due to the nature of foundation works, the foundation
and structure of any buildings adjacent to the Group’s
construction sites may be affected or damaged during the
construction process.

The Group may incur additional cost and time in carrying
out remedial works and this may cause material delay in
completing the project. The Group may face claims from
customers for losses and for liquidated damages due to
delay. Further, the Group may also be exposed to claims and
disputes from third parties arising from damage caused to the
adjacent buildings. Such claims, legal and other proceedings
may affect the Group’s reputation and also increase the costs
of the projects undertaken by the Group, resulting in adverse
impact on the financial performance of the Group.

Failure to bid new contract

The Group’s business relies on successful tenders that
determine the award of contracts for foundation works and/
or associated works. Given the non-recurring nature of these
contract awards and the Group does not have long-term
commitment with its customers, the number of contracts
awarded to the Group may vary from year to year.

Upon the completion of its contracts on hand, the Group's
financial performance may be adversely affected if the Group
is unable to secure new tenders or obtain new contract
awards with comparable contract sums or at all.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRE D (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Uncertain external factors

Despite the construction industry is one of the traditional core
industries in Hong Kong and it is currently benefitting from
strong housing needs and government large infrastructure
projects, the construction industry may suffer adverse impact
in the event of any change in government policies, sudden
economic setback and unanticipated natural disasters. Since
our customers are mostly private sector property developers,
the future growth and profitability of the foundation industry
largely depends on the continued prosperity of the property
market and the construction industry in Hong Kong.

Although the Group has a number of contracts on hand,
these external factors may affect the number of new
construction projects available in the private sector in medium
to long term.

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs"”) with the
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Strategy of the Group

The Group set a number of KPIs to support the delivery of its

strategies with its performance as below:

Strategy
SRR

KPIs
IRRBAER

=)
AEEDRESE TIERRERUSHE
MEEL A - RBEWAT

Performance

®Y

Maximise value for its
shareholders

REREERKER

Enhance customers
satisfaction and
maintain quality
control on projects

IN5& % = B AR P
HIEANE 2

Gross profit margin
=29.5% (2014: 21.6%)
ERE
=29.5%

—T—IUE :21.6%)

Return on equity
=48.8% (2014: 30.1%)
T 2 0] S 3K
=48.8%

—T Y% 30.1%)

Ratio of sub-contracting
charge to direct costs
=63.8% (2014: 55.7%)

DB HEEERAL
R=638% (TN
F:557%)

The Group’s experience in the foundation industry,
its established reputation and long-term relationship
with its major customers have enabled it to secure
contract awards for projects with higher profit
margin.

REBMNIETENLESR  RIFNEERERETEE
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The Group continues to engage a list of pre-approved
subcontractors to maintain more efficient quality
control of its projects.
REBAEERIE—5|FALIEN D BB - ARFEHE
HEERMMEEEH -
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(continued)

Strategy of the Group (continued)

KPIs
IRRBER

Strategy
R

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs") with the

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EXRNBERE(E)

FEERHENEIERBAER(EXE
®BER] (H)

Performance

=Y

Improve the Group’s
liquidity
HEREERDESD

Operating cash inflow

HK$3,216,000)
EEBERA

= 44,590,000 7T (=
Z—J4F : 3,216,000 7

L)
Cash and bank balances

HK$53,014,000)

R MBI

= 70,158,000 7T (==
—PU4 @ 53,014,0007%8
i)

Strive for the “Zero
Harm” safety goal
BERZEE]

ZE AR

Lost Time Injury
Frequency Rate in
calendar 2014 (“LTIFR")
(Note)

=9.25(2013: 15.53)
—Z—MEBFRLT
LG EHER ([18K
TR ITEEHIEEX (M
F)=925(=FE—=4%:
15.53)

Note:

= HK$44,590,000 (2014:

= HK$70,158,000 (2014:

The Group has strengthened its control on debt
collection. The Group targets to increase its cash to a
more security level.

REEE hog BRI D ES] - REE B RAK
HERSEAZRLR2RT -

The Group has hired one additional safety officer
during the Financial Year 2015 and is in the course
of recruiting one additional safety officer to better
monitor the safety issues at sites. This measure helps
to ensure that employees and subcontractors have
complied with the relevant safety measures.

BPR-Z-—AMBFEEFINERA—BL2EE I
FEBEEIN—BLE I - UEGBOEER B
ZE2EH - HERERREE RO EEETHEER

2 o

MiRE

BRIBTESHERE - BRTR —BREHANITE
R (I B1008/ ) BEZVIBATH
TEEHMIEER - FRAVIMNIBRIR TEFHIAER
Ty LA & 48 T V5 48 T 5 Bk DA A 70 85 22 091 308 R A
1,000,000 © RFEHET AN TR AGHI0/NE - =T
—ZFEFR-T-NFEFNIIEARLA29%H
}296 0 ©

LTIFR is a frequency rate that shows how many lost time injuries occurred over a
specified time (e.g. per 1,000,000 hours) worked in a period. The LTIFRs shown
above are calculated by using the total labour hours worked per calendar year to
divide the number of recordable cases and multiply by 1,000,000. It is assumed
that the working hour of each worker is 10 hours per day. The number of
working days for the calendar year 2013 and 2014 were approximately 296 days
and 296 days.

In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2015



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRE D (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Relationships with Customers, Working

Partners and Employees

The Group maintains long-term relationship with its
customers and working partners (including subcontractors,
suppliers and consultants), some of which have established
more than 10 years of working relationship with the Group.
The close working relationship can also be demonstrated by
the increasing number of customer portfolios and continuous
cooperation with working partners which may be engaged
by the Group in one or more of its projects at the same
time. Building successful long-term relationships with them
is a key element of the Group’s business model, which is
closely interlinked with all the other elements of its model.
Successful long-term relationships are built on trust — a trust
that the Group is able to provide quality service and excellent
customer experience. To achieve this, the Group needs
experienced people with the right skills and capabilities as
well as continuous supports from its working partners.

The Group also maintains a very stable and experienced
management team and an amicable long-term relationship
with its employees. The Group has a low staff turnover rate
of 3.7% in 2015 (2014: 11.4%) and many of the Group's
skilled employees have worked with the Group for a number
of years. The Group's key management team comprises
three executive Directors and the Financial Controller, the
biography of each is set out under the section headed
"Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this
report. The Group's experienced management team, coupled
with a stable pool of skilled labour, is one of its key drives in
delivering high quality work to customers in order to attain
high customers’ satisfaction.

Environmental Policies

The Group places an emphasis on environmental protection
when undertaking its projects. The Group was awarded
the I1ISO 14001:2004 (environment management system
accreditation). The current ISO 14001:2004 certificate is
valid from 3 September 2014 until 3 September 2017. When
preparing the tender documents, the Group will take into
consideration the environmental protection requirements
of potential customers as well as the relevant laws and
regulations in relation to environmental protection. The
Group's safety officers are responsible for ensuring that
the Group satisfies the applicable laws and regulations
requirements and identifying and reporting on environmental
issues to our project management team.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulation

The Group mainly undertakes foundation works and
associated works for construction projects in the private
sector in Hong Kong and is thus subject to the rules and
regulations implemented by the Buildings Department which
regulates contractors in the private sector. The Directors
confirmed that during the Financial Year 2015 and up to
the date of this report, the Group had obtained all the
registrations and certifications required for its business
and operations in Hong Kong, and had complied with the
applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong in all material
respects.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND nBES  MKERRERE
CAPITAL STRUCTURE 15

As at 31 March

R=A=+-—AH

2015 2014

=2 5% -z n

Current ratio M EN L& 2.2 2.1
Gearing ratio’ BEBELE 14.1% 9.4%
Note: B &
1. Gearing ratio is calculated based on debts including payables incurred 1. BEBBLRRER(BETIIE-—REBKB

not in the ordinary course of business divided by the total equity as at

the reporting dates.

Current ratio remained stable as at 31 March 2015. Gearing
ratio increased from 9.4% as at 31 March 2014 to 14.1% as
at 31 March 2015, mainly due to net reduction in equity after
including net profit for the Financial Year 2015 and dividend
paid during the Financial Year 2015.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$70.2 million (2014: HK$53.0 million),
of which approximately HK$70.0 million (2014: HK$49.9
million) were restricted bank balances. Such restricted bank
balances were held for the purpose of the issuance of surety
bonds for our projects. As at 31 March 2015, the Group
had bank overdrafts of approximately HK$5.0 million (2014:
HK$0.1 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRE D (&)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continued)

The capital structure of the Group consisted of equity of
HK$148.8 million and debts of HK$21.0 million as at 31
March 2015.

The Group adopts a prudent approach in cash management.
Apart from certain debts including obligations under finance
leases, bank overdrafts and loans from shareholders, the
Group did not have any material outstanding debts as at 31
March 2015. Payment to settle trade payable represented
the significant part of the cash outflow of the Group. Taking
into account the light debt leverage and the net proceeds
from the Listing, the Group is able to generate cash and meet
upcoming cash requirements. In any case, the Group may
utilise its banking facilities of HK$150.0 million, of which the
unutilised and unrestricted banking facilities amounted to
approximately HK$104.5 million.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

POLICY

The Group had 55 full-time employees as at 31 March 2015.
The Group offers competitive remuneration package that is
based on overall market rates and employee performance, as
well as the performance of the Group. Remuneration package
is comprised of salary, a performance-based bonus, and other
benefits including training and provident funds.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Save as disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements, the
Group had no other capital commitments as at 31 March
2015.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements, the
Group had no other contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2015.

CHARGE OVER ASSETS

Save as disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements, as
at 31 March 2015, the Group had restricted bank balances
which were charged to banks to secure bank facilities
granted to the Group and the issuance of performance
bonds. The Group also had certain construction machinery
acquired under finance leases. As at 31 March 2015, the net
book value of the machinery held under finance leases was
HK$70,000 (2014: HK$280,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENRR D (&)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES, AND PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Apart from the reorganisation in relation to the Listing, there
were no significant investments held, material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during
the year ended 31 March 2015. Save for the business plan as
disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 31 March
2015 (the “Prospectus”), there is no other plan for material
investments or capital assets as at 31 March 2015.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The net proceeds from the Listing will be utilised subsequent
to the Listing in accordance with the proposed applications
set out in the section “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
of the Prospectus. The below table sets out the proposed
applications of the net proceeds and usage up to the date of
this announcement:

EEXRE - BAYMRH
EHBAAREBAT - LR
EARARANAENTE

BEEHBERZERN REE_F—H
FZA=T—HLLFER  AEEHES
BEAKRE BARBIHENBRARR
BMBAR - BARFEHA T —HF=
A=t+—Bzaksi(HRER]D M
WEZEBHEN R_E-—HF=A
=t—B BMEEAREREABEENH
flst &l -

EH SRR FEAR
EWFSRIBFEER Lk RIERRE
T2 [ Kot BI R BT S B iR | — AT L2
FE R o TRMIIBESLMEEH
LR FR 1S SRR R EEE IS RS

Actual usage up

Proposed to the date of

application announcement

BEAMARL

BRERAZ WER AR

HK$ million HK$ million

BEBT BEBT

Hiring of additional staff BEEIINET 14.9 -
Acquisition of additional machinery WS RE M SR AN R 8

and equipment 19.9 19.9
Financing for the issue of surety BERITARIIEB B

bonds for future projects BARFE B RLE 54.7 -

General working capital —REEAS 10.0 10.0

99.5 29.9
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Taking into account the Hong Kong Government’s policy
in increasing land supply and proposing several large
infrastructure projects, the Group expects an optimistic
growth in the construction industry. Despite the vigorous
competition in Hong Kong construction industry, the Board
is optimistic that the Group can maintain steady growth in
net profit and scale of operations due to its long established
reputation and proven ability. To maintain its competitive
edge, the Group continues to adhere to its business
strategy, by expanding its capacity to capture more business
opportunities, reinforcing its capability in foundation design
and project management skills and offering qualitative and
flexible solution to our customers.

The listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange marked an important milestone in the history
of the Group and opened up brand-new opportunities for
the Group’s development in the future. Looking forward,
the Group will continue its expansion by purchasing new
equipments and recruiting middle and top level staff. The
Group also welcomes any proposals if they meet the Group's
strategic position and development.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EERGHNEEAEBRBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Pak Man (Z|{43), aged 60, is our Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer, executive Director and General
Manager of the Group. Mr. Lau, together with Mr. Cheng
Wing Cheong, are the founders of the Group. Mr. Lau
is responsible for overall strategic development, project
management and client management of the Group. Mr.
Lau is also a director of In Construction Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, since 20 December
1996. Mr. Lau obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in
Civil Engineering from the University of Leeds in July 1979.
Mr. Lau has nearly 24 years of extensive experience in the
construction industry in Hong Kong since 1991. Prior to
founding In Construction in December 1996, Mr. Lau was
the projects manager and contracts manager of Fong On
Construction & Engineering Co Ltd between January 1991
till December 1994 and January 1995 till December 1996,
respectively, mainly responsible for H-piling foundations,
supply and installations projects as well as a construction
and redevelopment project. Mr. Lau has been a member
of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers since July 1992,
a chartered engineer of the Institution of Civil Engineers,
London, England since November 1984, a member of the
Institution of Civil Engineers since December 1983, a member
of the Institute of Highways and Transportation, London,
England since March 1983 and a registered professional
engineer (civil) of Engineers Registration Board. Mr. Lau is the
spouse of Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit.

Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong ( #f 4 & ), aged 60, is our
executive Director and the Director — Construction of
the Group. Mr. Cheng is a founder of the Group and is
responsible for overseeing the tender process including
foundation design and project budget, as well as quality
control of our projects. Mr. Cheng has acted as a director of
In Construction Limited since 20 December 1996. Mr. Cheng
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering from
the University of Hong Kong in October 1977. In the course
of his career, Mr. Cheng has accumulated more than 20 years
of comprehensive experience in the construction industry.
Between May 1989 and August 1992, Mr. Cheng worked in
China Overseas Foundation Engineering Limited as a director
and deputy general manager.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit (E8320\) , aged 43, is our executive
Director and the Director — Operations of the Group.
Ms. Kwan is responsible for project management and
coordination, as well as daily operations of the Group. Ms.
Kwan has been appointed a director of In Construction since
1 December 2014. Ms. Kwan obtained a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree in Management from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in November 1994.
Ms. Kwan has accumulated about 21 years of experience
in the construction industry. She joined In Construction
Limited as an assistant manager in April 1997. Prior to joining
our Group, Ms. Kwan worked at Sam Woo Engineering
Equipment Limited from February 1995 to April 1997. During
her employment there, she has worked as an assistant
manager. Ms. Kwan is the spouse of Mr. Lau Pak Man.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Chi Kin (#8), aged 61, is an independent
non-executive Director appointed by the Company on
26 March 2015. Mr. Leung obtained a high diploma in
accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
(formerly known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic) in November
1976. In the course of his career, Mr. Leung has accumulated
over 38 years of working experience in auditing, accounting,
taxation and financial management. Mr. Leung is currently a
practicing Certified Public Accountant and managing director
of Chang Leung Hui & Li C.P.A. Limited. He is also a Certified
Tax Adviser of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong for the
year 2015. Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Between
June 1976 and November 1980, Mr. Leung worked in Lowe
Bingham & Matthews Price Waterhouse & Co., and then
started his own accounting practice in January 1981 and has
been in public practice up to now.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

ESREREEASRERE (&)

Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis( # & # ), aged 67, is an
independent non-executive Director appointed by the
Company on 26 March 2015. Mr. Lam obtained a Bachelor
of Science degree in November 1969, after that he obtained
a degree of Doctor of Philosophy from the University of
Hong Kong in November 1972. Mr. Lam has over 15 years of
experience in engineering. Mr. Lam is currently the managing
director and founder of LR Construction Technologies Ltd.
since August 2012, the managing director and co-founder
of LR Construction and Consultancy Ltd. since April 2012,
and the managing director and co-founder of Alternative
Turbine Technologies Ltd. since June 2009. From November
1996 to August 2004, Mr. Lam was a principal lecturer of
the Vocational Training Council. From 1976 to 1977, and
from 1986 to 1987, Mr. Lam was an appointed lecturer in
the Department of Civil and Structural Engineering of the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam has been a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Engineers since November 1975
and is also a registered professional engineer of Engineers
Registration Board.

Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao Chi
Meng) ( B F # ), aged 52, is an independent non-
executive Director appointed by the Company on 26 March
2015. Mr. Yau is qualified as a Barrister-at-law in Hong
Kong since March 2011. Mr. Yau obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in Electronic and Electrical Engineering from
Loughborough University of Technology, England in July
1987. He subsequently obtained a Juris Doctor in Laws and
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from City University of
Hong Kong in November 2008 and July 2010, respectively.
Mr. Yau has over 19 years of experience in electric power
engineering. Mr. Yau worked in CLP Power Hong Kong
Limited between January 1991 and April 2010, during which
Mr. Yau undertook various positions, with his last position
being a senior project engineer at CLP Engineering Limited, a
subsidiary of CLP Power Hong Kong Limited, in April 2010.

Mr. Yau has been a member of the Institution of Engineering
and Technology, England (formerly known as the Institution
of Electrical Engineers, England) and a chartered electrical
engineer of the Engineering Council, England since 2000. He
has been a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
since 2001 and a member of the Chartered Institution of
Building Services Engineers, England since 2004. Mr. Yau has
also been a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators
since 2011.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER AND COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chow Chun To (&4#&3E), aged 32, joined us as the
Financial Controller of the Group since 11 September 2014.
Mr. Chow was appointed as our company secretary on 28
October 2014. Mr. Chow is responsible for the accounting
and financial functions, internal control as well as the
company secretarial affairs of the Group. Mr. Chow obtained
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in December 2006. Mr. Chow
has over eight years of accounting and audit experience and
has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 8 July 2013. Prior to joining our
Group, he was the financial controller of JC Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8326) from May 2013 to September
2014. Between May 2011 and May 2013, Mr. Chow was the
financial manager of Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Chiho-Tiande Group Limited (stock code:
976). From February 2008 to April 2011, Mr. Chow was
employed at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu with his last position
being senior auditor.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Board presents this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in foundation works
as well as associated works including demolition works,
site formation works, ground investigation field works and
general building works. The activities and particulars of the
Company'’s subsidiaries are shown under note 13 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the financial year ended 31
March 2015 are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 47 of
this report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board proposes to recommend, at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Monday, 24 August 2015 (the “2015 AGM"), a final dividend
of HK$0.03 per ordinary share of the Company for the
Financial Year 2015. It is expected that the proposed final
dividend, if approved by the shareholders of the Company at
the 2015 AGM, will be payable on or about 15 September
2015 to the shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday,
28 August, 2015.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to establish entitlements to attend and vote at the
2015 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 21 August 2015 to Monday, 24 August
2015, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. Shareholders of the
Company are reminded to ensure that all completed share
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 20 August 2015.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(continued)

In order to establish entitlements to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed on Friday, 28 August 2015, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
Shareholders of the Company are reminded to ensure that all
completed share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 27 August 2015.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years, as extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements in this report
and the Prospectus, is set out on page 108. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements in this report.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of shares issued in the Financial Year 2015 are set out
in note 21(c) to the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2015, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$86,494,000.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Except for the matters disclosed under the “Recent
Development” section under “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this report, the Board is not aware of any
significant event requiring disclosure that has taken place
subsequent to 31 March 2015 and up to the date of this
report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the Financial Year 2015 amounted to HK$1 million.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities since the
date of Listing on 16 April 2015 (“Listing Date”).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles,
or the law of Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction in which
the Company is incorporated.

DIRECTORS

The Directors since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
report, are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Pak Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 29 September 2014)

Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong
(appointed on 29 September 2014)

Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit
(appointed on 29 September 2014)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Leung Chi Kin
(appointed on 26 March 2015)

Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis
(appointed on 26 March 2015)

Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao Chi Meng)
(appointed on 26 March 2015)

Each of the Directors will be subject to retirement and re-
election at annual general meeting in accordance with the
Articles.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not 3 or a
multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at every annual
general meeting of the Company. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election.

Further, pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association,
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Leung Chi Kin,
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis and Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also
known as lao Chi Meng) shall retire from office by rotation at
the 2015 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM. By virtue of Article 108(a) of the Articles
of Association, Mr. Lau Pak Man shall retire from office by
rotation at the 2015 AGM and, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election at the said meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company and each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors has signed an appointment letter
with the Company. The appointment of each of the Directors
is for a period of three years and shall continue thereafter
until being terminated by either party giving not less than
three months’ written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for election or re-
election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS’" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

Apart from the contracts relating to the reorganisation in
relation to the Listing, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or its parent
company was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or during the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

Save for Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong's interest in Longo Piling
Company, details of which were set out in the section
headed “Relationships with Controlling Shareholders” of
the Prospectus, none of the Directors nor the controlling
shareholders of the Company nor their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
that competed or might compete with the business of the
Group in the Financial Year 2015.

Mr. Lau Pak Man, Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit, In Play Limited and
Kinetic Kingdom Limited, being the controlling shareholders
of the Company declared that they have complied with the
undertakings given under the Deed of Non-competition as
disclosed in the Prospectus. Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong, Longo
Piling Company and Wealth Celebration Limited declared
that they have complied with the undertakings given under
the Longo Deed of Non-competition as disclosed in the
Prospectus.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors were delegated
with the authority to review, on an annual basis, the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition and the Longo
Deed of Non-competition. The Independent Non-Executive
Directors were not aware of any non-compliance of both
Deeds of Non-competition since the respective dates of the
deeds and up to the date of this report.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” of this report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at the date of the report, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations, within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), which (a)
were required pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or
(c) were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares:
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Mr. Lau Pak Man Interest in a controlled corporation Nete D 270,000,000 32.53%
2Max et REAESI A B 1)
Interest of spouse Note2 60,000,000 7.23%
TR B dE 25 (Wi 2)
Total 330,000,000 39.76%
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Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong Interest in a controlled corporation Mete3 270,000,000 32.53%
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Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit Interest in a controlled corporation Nete4 60,000,000 7.23%
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Interest of spouse Note > 270,000,000 32.53%
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Total 330,000,000 39.76%
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

1. In Play Limited is 100.0% owned by Mr. Lau Pak Man. Mr. Lau Pak Man
is therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by In Play Limited
under the SFO.

2. Mr. Lau Pak Man is the spouse of Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Lau Pak Man is deemed to be interested in the same number
of Shares in which Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit is deemed to be interested.

3. Wealth Celebration Limited is 100.0% owned by Mr. Cheng Wing
Cheong. Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong is therefore deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by Wealth Celebration Limited under the SFO.

4. Kinetic Kingdom Limited is 100.0% owned by Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit. Ms.
Kwan Kit Sum Kit is therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by Kinetic Kingdom Limited under the SFO.

5. Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit is the spouse of Mr. Lau Pak Man. By virtue of
the SFO, Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit is deemed to be interested in the same

number of Shares in which Mr. Lau Pak Man is deemed to be interested.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 16 April 2015. The register
of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at the
date of the report, the following shareholders, other than
those disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interest in Securities”, had notified the Company
of its interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Long positions in the Shares: RHEFR -
Approximate
percentage
of the
issued share
capital of the
Company
Name of Number (ERNE|
substantial shareholder Capacity of shares 2EITRAN
FTERRER 54 RHEE R EE:
In Play Limited Beneficial owner 270,000,000 32.53%
EmliB A
Wealth Celebration Limited Beneficial owner 270,000,000 32.53%
Enlis A
Kinetic Kingdom Limited Beneficial owner 60,000,000 7.23%
Enlis A
MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS FEHREREER

The percentage of purchases and sales for the financial year
ended 31 March 2015 attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 18.3%
— five largest suppliers combined 63.4%
Sales

— the largest customer 22.6%
— five largest customers combined 68.3%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the
major suppliers or customers noted above.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in securities”
above, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company or their associates to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there were no
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
of the Company which requires compliance with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
Details of material related party transactions undertaken in
the usual course of business of the Group are set out in note
25 to the financial statements. However, these transactions
were either exempt from reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, or did not fall under the
definition of connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the public float as required by
the Listing Rules since the Listing Date and up to the date of
this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Financial Year 2015
is included in the Management Discussion and Analysis in this
report on pages 7 to 17. This business review forms part of
this Directors’ Report.

AUDITOR

KPMG were appointed as auditor of the Company in May
2015 and will retire at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint
KPMG as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Lau Pak Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015
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Corporate Governance Report
N 'M‘Aﬁﬂ:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed
in achieving a high standard of corporate governance and
leading the Group to attain better results and improve
its corporate image with effective corporate governance
procedures.

Since Listing, the Board is of the opinion that the Company
had adopted, applied and complied with the code provisions
as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) except for the deviation from provision A.2.1
of the Code.

According to provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Lau Pak
Man is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, responsible
for overall strategic development, project management and
client management of the Group. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in Mr. Lau Pak Man has the benefit of ensuring
consistent and continuous planning and execution of the
Company'’s strategies. The Board considers that the balance
of power and authority, accountability and independent
decision-making under the present arrangement will not be
impaired in light of the diverse background and experience
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, and the
composition of the Board which comprises equal number of
Independent Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors
also provides added independence to the Board. Further,
the Audit Committee composed exclusively of Independent
Non-Executive Directors has free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditors and independent professional
advisers when it considers necessary.
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THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board consists of six Directors including Mr. Lau
Pak Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr.
Cheng Wing Cheong and Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit as the
Executive Directors and Mr. Leung Chi Kin, Mr. LAM
Chi Hung Louis and Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also
known as lao Chi Meng) as the Independent Non-
Executive Directors. Their name and biographical details
are set in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” in this report. The overall
management of the Company’s operation was vested
in the Board.

Save that Mr. Lau Pak Man and Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit
are spouses, there are no financial, business, family or
other material relationships among members of the
Board.

Since the Listing Date, the Board has at all times met
the requirements of rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-Executive Directors with at least
one Independent Non-Executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The three Independent Non-Executive Directors
represent half of the Board, the proportion of which
is higher than what is required by Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive
directors of a listed issuer must represent at least one-
third of the board. The Board believes there is sufficient
independence element in the Board to safeguard the
interest of shareholders.

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal
control and risk management systems, and monitor
the performance of the senior executives. The Directors
have to make decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company.

Liability insurance for Directors and senior management
officers of the Company was maintained by the
Company with coverage for any legal liabilities which
may arise in the course of performing their duties.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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(A) THE BOARD (continued) (A) EF=E((E)

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of Executive Directors
along with other senior executives, is delegated with
responsibilities for implementing the strategy and
direction as adopted by the Board from time to time,
and conducting the day-to-day operations of the
Group. Executive Directors and senior executives meet
regularly to review the performance of the businesses
of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources
and make financial and operational decisions. The
Board also gives clear directions as to their powers
of management including circumstances where
management should report back, and will review the
delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure
that they remain appropriate to the needs of the
Group.

Compliance with the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct of dealings in securities of the
Company by Directors (the “Model Code”). Upon
specific enquiries of all the Directors, each of them
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code since the Listing
Date.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Independent Non-Executive Directors play
a significant role in the Board by virtue of their
independent judgment and their views carry significant
weight in the Board's decision. They bring an
impartial view on issues of the Company’s strategies,
performance and control.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors possess
extensive academic, professional and industry expertise
and management experience and have provided their
professional advice to the Board.

The Board also considers that the Independent Non-
Executive Directors can provide independent advice
on the Company’s business strategies, results and
management so as to safeguard the interests of the
Company and its shareholders.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
(continued)

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed
for a term of three years commencing from 26
March 2015. None of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors held any other offices in the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of the
Company. All Independent Non-Executive Directors
have confirmed their independence to the Company
in accordance with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all Independent Non-Executive
Directors are independent.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent
Non-Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract or a letter of appointment with the Company
for a specific term. Such term is subject to his/her
re-election by the Company at an annual general
meeting (“AGM") upon retirement. Article 112 of
the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”)
provides that any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the members of
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
such meeting.

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles, at each
AGM of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 112, Mr. Leung Chi Kin, Mr. Lam
Chi Hung Louis and Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also
known as lao Chi Meng) and pursuant to Article 108
of the Articles, Mr. Lau Pak Man, will retire from office
as Directors at the forthcoming 2015 AGM, and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The members of the Company may, at any general
meetings convened and held in accordance with the
Articles, remove a Director by ordinary resolution at any
time before the expiration of his/her period of office
notwithstanding anything contrary in the Articles or
in any agreement between the Company and such
Director and may by ordinary resolution elect another
person in his/her stead.
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(A) THE BOARD (continued)

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the
overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group. Directors may participate
either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, the
Board should meet regularly and board meetings
should be held as least four times a year. Since the
Listing Date, a Board meeting of the Company was held
on 26 June 2015 to approve the Group's final results
for the year ended 31 March 2015.

The attendance of the respective Directors to the Board
Meetings are set out below:

EEE(8)

EBeeH
EEGEHREEH R EAEE
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T

Attendance/Number of
meetings between the
Listing Date and the
date of this report
TR ERRELD
ZEEHERY EERE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lau Pak Man =y et 1/1

Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong BPEE B S 1/1

Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit E2)-YiYegun 1/1

Independent Non-Executive Directors BAFHITES

Mr. Leung Chi Kin RIFER S 1/1

Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis MEHES 1/1

Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EF8EE 171
(also known as lao Chi Meng)

All Directors received training in the form of seminar EEEUMTENEREIE

and provision of training materials to ensure that he/
she is fully aware of his/her duties and responsibilities as
a director under applicable rules and requirements. All
Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the Code and
Corporate Governance Report).

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees
and has delegated various responsibilities to the
committees including the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”). All the
Board Committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference
which are available to shareholders on the Company’s
website. The Board Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expense.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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(A) THE BOARD (continued)

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on
26 March 2015 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph C3 of the Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment and removal of external auditors;
review the financial statements and render advice in
respect of financial reporting as well as oversee internal
control procedures of the Group.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Chi Kin
(being the chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Lam Chi Hung Louis and Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman
(also known as lao Chi Meng). In compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit
Committee possesses the appropriate professional and
accounting qualifications.

As the Company only became listed on the Stock
Exchange on 16 April 2015, no Audit Committee
meeting was held during the financial year ended
31 March 2015. However, subsequent to the end of
financial year ended 31 March 2015 and up to the
date of this report, meetings of the Audit Committee
were held on 18 May 2015 to review audit plan to be
carried out by the external auditors for the year ended
31 March 2015 and on 26 June 2015 to review the
Group’s financial result for the year ended 31 March
2015 before submission to the Board for approval.
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Attendance/Number of
meetings between the
Listing Date and the
date of this report

Lt EBERREAD
ZEHERE EERE

Mr. Leung Chi Kin (Chairman) PREREE (£/F)
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis MREHESTE
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EFEsESE

(also known as lao Chi Meng)

2/2
2/2

2/2
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(A) THE BOARD (continued) (A)
Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration
Committee on 26 March 2015 with written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and senior management of our Group; review
performance based remuneration; and ensure none of
our Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee consists of 3 members,
being Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao
Chi Meng) (being the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit, and Mr. Leung Chi
Kin.

As the Company only became listed on the Stock
Exchange on 16 April 2015, no Remuneration
Committee meeting was held during the financial year
ended 31 March 2015. However, subsequent to the
end of financial year ended 31 March 2015 and up to
the date of this report, a meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held on 26 June 2015 to review
and make recommendation on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management and director’s fee of Independent Non-
Executive Directors.
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Attendance/Number of
meetings between the
Listing Date and the
date of this report

LW EHERFEAN
ZBEHERE, EERY

Mr. Yau Chi Man (also know as EFSEE(FE)
lao Chi Meng) (Chairman)

Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit 2.0t

Mr. Leung Chi Kin PRERLE
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TEERBRE (&)

(A) THE BOARD (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)
Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the Code, the
annual remuneration (including bonus) of the members
of the senior management of the Group by band for
the year ended 31 March 2015 is set out below:

(A) EEE(R)

FHESS (8)
RBETRIZ TR HEBAS5 K -
BE_ZT-—AF=RA=+—HIHF
B AEESREBABZFES
B (BIRTEAL) IREEHZINT

Number of Senior

Remuneration Band Management
55 B 5 = =SREEAEHA
Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 LA T 1

HK$1,000,001 to up to HK$2,000,000
Above HK$2,000,000

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee
on 26 March 2015 with written terms of reference
in compliance with paragraph A.4 of the Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment
of Directors and the management of the Board
succession.

The Nomination Committee consists of 3 members,
being Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis (being the chairman of
the Nomination Committee), Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong
and Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao Chi
Meng).

As the Company only became listed on the Stock
Exchange on 16 April 2015, no Nomination Committee
meeting was held during the financial year ended
31 March 2015. However, subsequent to the end of
financial year ended 31 March 2015 and up to the date
of this report, a meeting of the Nomination Committee
was held on 26 June 2015 to assess the independence
of Independent Non-Executive Directors and review the
re-election of Directors at the 2015 AGM.
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(A) THE BOARD (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Attendance/Number of
meetings between the
Listing Date and the
date of this report
tHEMERRERD
ZEHERE, SR

Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis (Chairman) WEREE (FE) 171

Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong BRELAE 1/1

Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EFE5ESE 1/1
(also known as lao Chi Meng)

Board Diversity Policy EZgEZTLEE

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the AARDEMESTSREZ TR

“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and F((azBE]  ETEHABEHR

maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the WIREESKNEZILIRHAHES

effectiveness of the Board. & v AW EE Y it o

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to the talent, skill,
regional and industry experience, background, gender
and other qualities.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives
to implement the Policy and review such objectives
annually to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain
the progress made towards achieving those objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy
annually to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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(B) FINANCIAL REPORTING AND

INTERNAL CONTROL

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2015 in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also acknowledge their
responsibilities to ensure that the financial statements
of the Group are published in a timely manner. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the financial statements of the Company
on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of our Company’s
external auditors on the financial statements of the
Group are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this report.

External Auditor's Remuneration
For the year ended 31 March 2015, the remunerations

paid or payable to KPMG in respect of its audit
services and non-audit services are HK$850,000 and
HK$2,610,000, respectively. The non-audit services
mainly include the service fee paid to KPMG as the
reporting accountant of the Company in relation to
the Listing. The Audit Committee was satisfied that
the non-audit services in 2015 did not affect the
independence of the auditor.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures
have been designed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publications
and the compliance of applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Company has engaged CT Partners Consultants
Limited to conduct an assessment on the effectiveness
of the internal controls of the Group for its initial public
offering in 2015. The Board has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group and is satisfied that the Group has complied with
the Code in respect of internal control from the date of
Listing up to the date of this report. The internal control
are reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis by the
Executive Directors, and will be further reviewed and
assessed at least once each year by the Board.
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EREE ()
COMPANY SECRETARY AND

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Company Secretary

The Company has appointed Mr. Chow Chun To, CPA
who is an employee of the Company as its Company
Secretary. Mr. Chow has confirmed that for the year
under review, he has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training. The biography of Mr.
Chow is set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

Shareholders’ Right

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an
extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general
meetings shall also be convened on the requisition
of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall
be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary and deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong currently
situated at 26/F, Park Avenue Tower, 5 Moreton
Terrace, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Directors shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.
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(C) COMPANY SECRETARY AND

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Shareholders’ Right (continued)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles”) that extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene
an extraordinary general meeting for any business
specified in such written requisition.

Pursuant to the Article 113 of the Articles, no person
other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall,
unless recommended by the Directors for election, be
eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting
unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing
by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration
office of the Company. The period for lodgement of the
notices required will commerce no earlier than the day
after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting and
the minimum length of the period during which such
notices to the Company may be given will be at least
seven days.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director are available on the
Company’s website.
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EERKRE (H)

(C) COMPANY SECRETARY AND (Q) AEIMERKRFER (&)
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Constitutional Documents ERXH
There was no change to the Company's constitutional B EmHEER  ARFNERXH
documents since the Listing Date. The Articles is MEZS BAIRARRIRBEER
available on the Company's website and Hong Kong SREEMBRARBILAIHE
Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website. B e
Enquiries to the Board MESSFELER
Enquiries may be put to the Board through the RERAIBBARFNEBEEEE
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong WHMEBESELSH - WIAE
at 26/F, Park Avenue Tower, 5 Moreton Terrace, IR EEESR A BP0 2612
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (email: info@incon.hk). (BEHAE : info@incon.hk) ©
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY 2R E

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
In Construction Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
In Construction Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages
47 to 107, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2015, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

BREZEZRERARDZEERR
(REIS#ERMA L BRAF)

A EED (A TR 3 ) EFETHIER
F47E107 BEREBREERBR AR (LA
T IERF ) RENBAR (5ifE [ &
£8 ) WERE MEHRE - AP ERE
BEANZE-—AFE=A=1t—BNE&5
BIRREK  BHEZBLEFENGEBRER
Hib 2R  GAEREHRAGE
BERERAREZSHBURME R HA
MR E R o

EENASMBWMERAKEN
R
BARMERAARREEARHMAE
BB BRI | EEAD R EB(R
EODMEBEEFAEREMRENES
B - WHERBAEERARHRE
KRBT TR A R S AR T S B0 B
ASERBR LT O REESBE -

REENEE

BN EERBRERMNEFEZESS
MEHRERBER - HMERBEIRIRE
& o BRULLASN - BAPIROSRE N AT AR
i - BV TR ABRENAT - BER
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BACREBESTHRGHEMC(EE
FATERDEITER - RFEREREAM
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYRBEHRE (F)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2015 and of the Group's financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road,

Central, Hong Kong

26 June 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
ReEakEMEERRER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BEZ =T —RAF=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA IEHII7R)

2015 2014
—2-hf _—T@mOF
Note $'000 $'000
F = Fr T
Revenue WA 4 386,719 381,750
Direct costs HERAR (272,549) (299,192)
Gross profit ER 114,170 82,558
Other revenue HAb A 5 1,702 3,337
Other net income HAbyFA 6 - 12
Administrative and other TR E B R 2
operating expenses (26,065) (12,358)
Profit from operations R 89,807 73,549
Finance costs FhE KA 7(a) (431) (413)
Profit before taxation BRB AR R 7 89,376 73,136
Income tax FTiS# 8(a) (16,723) (12,159)
Profit and total comprehensive FREFNREME
income for the year AR 72,653 60,977
Earnings per share BRRAF) (B
(Hong Kong cents)
Basic and diluted BEARKREE 11 11.4 9.5

F£52E107 AWK EBRRENBHRRZ

The notes on pages 52 to 107 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividend payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set
out in note 21(b).

— &0 o BERNAF RN EN A AT
PRI B AR SR IEE N 21(0) °
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
HEEBBRRER

As at 31 March 2015 R=Z—HF=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EHII7R )

2015 2014
—E-RfF —F—U4F
Note $'000 $'000
B e Fx T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE &R 12 438 766
Finance lease receivables FElk b & T & 5RIE 18(a) 4,130 6,956
Deposits paid for acquisition of HEEWE  BE REE
property, plant and equipment TRZiES 2,351 =
A 6919 . 7,722
Current assets RENEE
Gross amounts due from customers EUEF &)
for contract work T 218 16 100,128 123,872
Finance lease receivables FEU B & T E IR 18(a) 2,826 2,727
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H b WK 14 109,600 217,909
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTE R 15(a) 70,158 53,014
.....282,712 ||| 397,522
Current liabilities REEE
Gross amounts due to customers BNEEA%
for contract work TERIEA 16 175 3,991
Trade and other payables B 5 R HEMERFIE 17 98,983 169,819
Bank overdrafts — secured RITES — BT 19 5,032 131
Obligations under finance leases A S AR 18(b) 2,826 2,932
Tax payable FERTHLIE 8(c) 20,704 9,597
...127.720 186,470 _
Net current assets RBEEFE 154,992 211,052
Total assets less current liabilities AEERAEERE 161,911 218,774
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
FEMBMRRRE (E)

Asat31 March 2015 R=ZE—RFE=A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

2015 2014
—2-hf _—T@mOF
Note $'000 $'000
hE=3 Fr Tt
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Loans from shareholders fEERE K 20 9,000 9,000
Obligations under finance leases BhE T EAYE 18(b) 4,130 6,956
... 13a30 0 15,956

NET ASSETS BEEFRE 148,781 202,818

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXE S 21
Share capital A&z 21(c) 6,400 9,300
Reserves (i 142,381 193,518
TOTAL EQUITY RS 148,781 202,818

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors HEE&R -_T—H4E A -+ NBi#bE

on 26 June 2015 MR T3
Lau Pak Man Cheng Wing Cheong 2lax =
Director Director BE EZE

The notes on pages 52 to 107 form part of these financial 2552 % 107 BMMI @K Z ST ERE <
statements. — 25
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERgER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #EZ =T —HF=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EHII7R )

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RAFEERRE.

Share Share Capital  Retained Total

capital  premium reserve profits equity

B BEVEE ERGE REERN o

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

MizE T 7 i T i

At 1 April 2013 BR=B-=£ME-H 9,300 = = 132,541 141,841

Changes in equity for 2014: “E-MEREEE:

Profit and total comprehensive ERETIRE BT

income for the year - - - 60,977 60,977

At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R=Z-mF=F=1-A

R=E-MEMA-H 9,300 = = 193,518 202,818

Changes in equity for 2015: “E-TEREEY:
Profit and total comprehensive FRETIRE YRS

income for the year - - - 72,653 72,653
Dividend declared in respect of HEMEEERRE

the current year 21(b)i) - - - (186,000)  (186,000)
Issuance of new shares BITHR D 21(c)i) 10 - - - 10
Arising from reorganisation REMEMEE 21(c)i) - (9,290) 45,242 (35,952) - -
Capitalisation issue ERLEST 21(c)ii) 6,380 52,920 - - 59,300
At 31 March 2015 W=B-1%=B=1-H 6,400 98,162 (35,952) 80,171 148,781

The notes on pages 52 to 107 form part of these financial 5552 % 107 B &0t s 2 S M S RE 2
statements. — &5 e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERTMER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BEZ =T —RAF=A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA IEHII7R)

2015 2014
—E-RF —Z@OF
Note $'000 $'000
F = Fr T

Cash generated from operations K= FBHEE 15(b) 50,206 19,977
Tax paid BABIE (5.616) (16,761)
Net cash generated from RETHMERSER

operating activities 44590 3,216
Investing activities RETEE
Payment for the purchase of BEWHE  BEREERNR

property, plant and equipment (165) (279)
Deposits paid for acquisition of MEEWE  KE REE

property, plant and equipment T2 EE (2,351) -
Interest received B UF]E 505 792
Proceeds from disposal of property, H&E¥Z « BKE R&E

plant and equipment Fr1S 5k - 12
Capital element of finance lease BRFEERERE

rentals received BARTTE 2,727 1,586
Interest element of finance lease BpEREERS 2

rentals received METTE 300 237
Increase in restricted bank deposits SR #$R 1717 238 A0 (20,104) (5,275)
Net cash used in investing RETBFARSFE

activities (19088 (.927)
Financing activities REES
Interest paid BEAFLE (131) (7)
Capital element of finance leases BENRERERS

rentals paid BARTTER (2,932) (2,871)
Interest element of finance leases BEfNRERERS

rentals paid FET= (300) (406)
Dividends paid B E (30,000) (4,650)
Net cash used in financing RMETEBFARSFEE

activies | (33.363) | _(7.934)
Net decrease in cash and ReRBEELEEY

cash equivalents WA REE (7,861) (7,645)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHHNEER

beginning of the year ReZEY 2,966 10,611
Cash and cash equivalents at the F£XRHERER

end of the year REZEY 15(a) (4,895) 2,966

The notes on pages 52 to 107 form part of these financial

statements.

F£52E107 ANKEBKZEFRBHRR 2

—apk7o e
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R SRR M &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7THI7R)

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

In Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged as a contractor in the
foundation industry in Hong Kong. The Company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability on 29 September 2014
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to a reorganisation of the Group (the
“Reorganisation”) which was completed on 16
March 2015 to rationalise the corporate structure in
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company
became the holding company of the subsidiaries now
comprising the Group. Details of the Reorganisation
are set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 31
March 2015 (the “Prospectus”).

The Reorganisation only involved inserting newly
formed entities with no substantive operations as
new holding companies of In Construction Limited
("ICL"), which was the Group’s sole operating entity.
Accordingly, the Reorganisation has been accounted
for using a principle similar to that for a reverse
acquisition as set out in Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 3, Business combinations, with ICL treated as
the acquirer for accounting purposes. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared and presented
as a continuation of the financial statements of ICL
with the assets and liabilities of ICL recognised and
measured at their historical carrying amounts prior to
the Reorganisation.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange on 16 April 2015 (the “Listing”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR MY AL (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note
2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
W& M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEXRS5THBER (&)
(continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) wHPBHRMOELE

statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2015 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

EEE LAY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXE5TEEK (&)
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies () EBFBXRZ2H

The HKICPA has issued the following EREMASE FIEUT

amendments to HKFRSs and one new RAKERARBE R

Interpretation that are first effective for the HEE X ER 2 BB MR

current accounting period of the Group and the HER 2 EF] R —EHHRE ¢

Company:

—~  Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and —  BHEMBHmEEE0
HKAS 27, Investment entities 9% BEMEHRELER

F125 MBI EER
F2THRERTAN » KEE

©
- Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting —  BAEGTERIFEI2HRE
financial assets and financial liabilities AN T EER
THEE
—  Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable — BB LHERIE36CHE
amount disclosures for non-financial assets RIAN » FEe A B E AT
[l 882 7%
= Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of — BB ERIE395E
derivatives and continuation of hedge RN pTETACEE
accounting REDFZ 1.2 LE
—  HK(FRIC) 21, Levies - BHH(EBRUB®REE

AREZEE) %2

- ¢

These developments have had no material ZEBRRUAEERNGRE M BRE
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial WimBEBRTE o

statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard ANEE I E RN S ATE T I
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the RAERZ AT AER 2R -

current accounting period.

RERSERARAT —E-HEETH



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
W& M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies
(continued)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9,
“Accounts and Audit”, of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) came into
operation at the start of the Company’s current
financial year. The adoption of the requirements
has primarily impacted the presentation and
disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements. These changes mainly
include the presentation of the Company’s
statement of financial position as a note
disclosure instead of a primary statement,
updating any references to the Companies
Ordinance to refer to the current Companies
Ordinance and replacing certain terminology no
longer used in the Companies Ordinance with
terminology used in HKFRSs.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR MY AL (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SBARETTHBXE)

(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued) (d) MEBEARE)
In the Company’s statement of financial position, RARB Z A BARRKER
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost RETBRR Z&E TR A
less impairment losses (see note 2(g)), unless MERRE B IR (R M EE
the investment is classified as held for sale (or 2(9)) ' BRIEZIETIDEE
included in a disposal group that is classified as FHERE (KET AR RIFE
held for sale). HEZ HEAR) o

(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) Y- BERRE

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(g)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Y% BE RRETIEKAR
R E T E MORE R AR
(RHE2(9) °

WREEZBETI AL S
SREFHEARERASR
ZHEZEZHEE  YRRE
HHEZ BERETHER -

ME- BERRBZITEZ
VA B AR FE DA T 4 5T AT 3
FAPR P85 EL AN CHABR b 51
RIAEE(WE))FE :

= Furniture and fixtures 5 years - BEREEE 54
-  Leasehold Shorter of lease —  THEMHE REEH
improvements term and 5 years 2 R5F AR
RERLE)

= Motor vehicles 3/3 years - A”=E 314
= Plant and machinery 5 years — BERKSE 54
- Office equipment 5 years -  WAERME 54

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

W—HWE  BERREBE
B8 2 Bl {E A F H 3 A 4
[l - AIEZIR B B &0 2 AR
IR EER DA -
DRIEEBITE - —HEE
Z ]t P B R R R B B (10
B EEETER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
W& M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

(ii) Assets acquired under finance leases
Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in fixed assets and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost or valuation
of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the
life of the asset, as set out in note 2(e).
Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2(g). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged
to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2015

2

BX

()

FETBCR ()
nEEE

WARBEFNE-—RLHFEAEE
W E R AEBX N —1A
H—RIRG - HEMESE
AR —BBEEEXLHR
EEEZERN - Az (H
—RRHE—RINRHHEK)
REEXBHEEE - ZEE
TREBZ 2 BEE AR
MmiEL  TRRERE AR
MEZRETN

() #FEEAEEEZIE
HRAEEUHERA
ZEE  MRBEEEA
Bz BAE D R
EHR\BBEAEKE - 18
HEERSE5ERIAR
BHERAE  WMRHEE
TEEMBRIBAR
7 A E FHERE E K
£E - RIERAKEHE

=

g o

(i) HBEREHEBAZEE
B AL B R EmMEH
EESEEFEREZE
N EFeEEEREE
BEATESZEEE
NRBEZEE(MAER
Bz&5m) 5 EEEE
E - mAAEEE(CTE
FBEER) Y ABRE
TS - TETIER
MY 5E 2(e) BTt » 7248 R
FEHsEE 2 A AF
PR (2075 55 B1R 7] BE BY
BEEZAHEBEE)AN
S E A ARG E © R
(B8R BRI 7 2(g) BT
itz EETBUR AR o
ENFRNEZHEEA
eEREHRZIBES
bk - FEESHME
ZREABRES EHE
Z R REAER o 3R
HeaEEEZ 2
fEz 825 Bk o



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR MY AL (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f) Leased assets (continued)
(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

(g) Impairment of assets

(@

Impairment of trade and other
receivables

Trade and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R AR Y AL (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other
receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR MY AL (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(g) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other
receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade debtors included within trade
and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment; and
- investment in subsidiaries in the

Company’s statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
W& M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEEBER (&)
(continued)
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(g) Impairment of assets (continued) (9) EBERMEE)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR MY AL (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
W& M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction
of an asset or a group of assets, where the
customer is able to specify the major structural
elements of the design. The accounting policy for
contract revenue is set out in note 2(p)(i). When
the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised
as an expense by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract at the end of the
reporting period. When it is probable that total
contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,
the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Construction contracts in progress at the end
of the reporting period are recorded at the net
amount of costs incurred plus recognised profit
less recognised losses and progress billings,
and are presented in the statement of financial
position as the “Gross amounts due from
customers for contract work” (as an asset) or the
“Gross amounts due to customers for contract
work” (as a liability), as applicable. Progress
billings not yet paid by the customer are included
under “Trade and other receivables”. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are
included under “Trade and other payables”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR MY AL (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

()]

(k)

U]

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(g)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Except for financial guarantee
liabilities measured in accordance with note 2(o)
(i), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and in hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated cash flow statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
W& M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(m) Employee benefits

(n)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

m In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2015

2

BX

2TBCR ()

(m) EEFER

(n)

e FELEL THF
&R~ R PR IRET B
RIS EBAMKAAREER
HAERE RS FE ARG o fid
ERMRKAELENER
2& AREcESREE
518 o

Frig st

F 2S5 B 15 AV EIRE 3] A
FIBEFER IR E BE N B E ) &
8 o BVEAM I8 DA R I FE 7 18
EERABNEPHRIEEA
FERR - MEENE M2 m K
o5 FE AR R B 3 0 2R HE AR Y
HEEBERI  RULBER
T EERERAEDINE
b 2 THD WL 25 i o8 o B 4 4

3¢ Ty
TR ©

B EA ¢ 38 T 7K 4F FE R B UL A
B TR R BB TR (R 3R 5 1
R BE £ BB MK
B) A RAEFERABIRR
EfaFHEE

BEREMIAEEERAEBD BIR
BAMHBRERRE R ZE
B HEMBRRZANE
ENRERAERERSHE
ZEMER - BEEBAEEE
TRIRERE AR IAERE IR
BAMEER



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR MY AL (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)
(n) Income tax (continued) (n) FEH (&)

SETHE (&)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities and all deferred tax
assets, to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference
or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that
is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
W& M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EARETEER(E)
(continued)
(n) Income tax (continued) (n) FrE% (&)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Group or the Company has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Group or the Company
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
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to realise the asset and settle the liability HFIREREEREE
simultaneously; or BE: %%
— in the case of deferred tax assets and — MECHBEEERBE

liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

- the same taxable entity; or
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- different taxable entities, which, - THENERHRE
in each future period in which B2 - T T8 A7
significant amounts of deferred tax T R 2R % 18 B
liabilities or assets are expected to be HEELEBEE
settled or recovered, intend to realise R 2 EERIE
the current tax assets and settle the BEHEE A
current tax liabilities on a net basis or BIZRFRELE
realise and settle simultaneously. FIRENAATIEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR MY AL (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(o) Financial guarantees issued,
provisions and contingent liabilities

(@

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference
to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had
the guarantees not been available, where
reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised
in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note
2(o)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call
upon the Group under the guarantee, and
(i) the amount of that claim on the Group
is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R AR Y AL (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(o) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities (continued)

Other provisions and contingent
liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other
liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

(p) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if

applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(@

Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably,
revenue from a fixed price contract work
is recognised based on the stage of
completion of the contracts, provided that
the stage of contract completion and the
gross billing value of contracting work
can be measured reliably. The stage of
completion of a contract is established
according to the progress certificate (by
reference to the amount of completed
works confirmed by surveyor) issued by the
customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR MY AL (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTHI7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SETBCR (8)
(continued)

(p) Revenue recognition (continued) (p) WamtEsE (E)

(i) Contract revenue (continued)
Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included in contract
revenue to the extent that they have been
agreed with the customer or the outcome
of which can be estimated reliably by
management and are capable of being
reliably measured.

When the outcome of a construction
contract cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable
will be recoverable.

(ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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(i)

(iii)

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

EEE L))

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(r) Related parties
(1) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.

(2)  An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)
(r) Related parties (continued) () PBEEER (&)

ERETTHER (&)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(n(1).

(vii) A person identified in (r)(1)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B &M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

(@) Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting
policies
In the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies, management has made the
following accounting judgements:

(i) Depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the fixed assets
regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful
lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets taking into
account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expense for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

(ii) Impairment of trade receivables

The Group evaluates whether there is any
objective evidence that trade receivables
are impaired, and estimates allowances
for doubtful debts as a result of the
inability of the debtors to make required
payments. The Group bases the estimates
on the ageing of the trade receivables
balance, credit-worthiness of the customer
and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of the debtors were
to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be
higher than estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

E E SR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

(@

Construction contracts

As explained in policy notes 2(h) and 2(p)
(i), revenue and profit recognition on
an uncompleted project is dependent
on estimating the total outcome of the
construction contract, as well as the
work done to date. Based on the Group's
recent experience and the nature of the
construction activities undertaken by the
Group, the Group makes estimates of the
point at which it considers the work is
sufficiently advanced such that the costs
to complete and revenue can be reliably
estimated. As a result, until this point is
reached the amounts due from customers
for contract work as disclosed in note 16
will not include profit which the Group
may eventually realise from the work done
to date. In addition, actual outcomes in
terms of total costs or revenue may be
higher or lower than estimated at the end
of the reporting period, which would affect
the revenue and profit recognised in future
years as an adjustment to the amounts
recorded to date.
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EEE L))

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

INFORMATION

contracts earned during the year.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT

Revenue represents revenue from construction

Wz o BRE R

WaHERFAMBRBREES HK

(a) Segment information (@) DBER ‘
The chief operating decision-maker regards the Ig%@ﬁ*%%EK%% H9
Group'’s business as a single operating segment %‘%ﬁ_fﬁ_ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ '
and reviews financial statements accordingly. 3 5 Uk B RS AR o Ut
Also, the Group only engages its business in oh ARBRREBEREH
Hong Kong. Therefore, no segment information iﬁ‘% ° Bk - W20 E
is presented. ARt e
(b) Information about major customers (b) EEE$£§’EZ§*Q
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% RARERBATFII0% BA
of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: FEROEPKEMAT
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZNF
$'000 $'000
Frx T
Customer A EFA - 93,032
Customer B EFB - 61,849
Customer C EFC - 55,537
Customer D EFD - 54,140
Customer E ZFE - 41,710
Customer F =FEF 87,430 -
Customer G ®FG 56,043 -
Customer H EFH 53,069 -
5  OTHER REVENUE H Al %
2015 2014
—E-RHEFE —ZTOEF
$'000 $'000
Fr F
Bank interest income RITABUA 505 792
Interest income from finance FEU B A T E5KIE
lease receivables ZF B A 300 397
Sales of scrap materials SHE R 830 2,091
Others EHAfth 67 57
1,702 3,337
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

E E SR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

6 OTHER NET INCOME

6 HWA TR

2015 2014
—E-RfF —TOF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE K&
plant and equipment B F R - 12

7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

7 BREEDGEF

BRBADEFME MR, (GEA) AT R

(crediting): 15 :
2015 2014
—E-IF —TE
$'000 $'000
Tr T
(@) Finance costs BMERE
Interest on bank overdrafts PITEXFE 131 7
Finance charges on obligations REMERECREER
under finance leases 300 406
431 413
(b)  Staff costs (including directors’ EIRK(BERESEHH)
remuneration)
Contributions to defined FUE TR IRGT B4R
contribution retirement plans 723 614
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMET 21,309 19,000
22,032 19,614
Less: Amount included in construction & : st AEBRREA YIS EE
contracts in progress (15,708) (14,958)
6,324 4,656
()  Other items HitE B
Depreciation e 493 554
Operating lease charges: minimum REMEER  HEMLE
lease payments in respect of ZHEAERNT
leasing of office 804 804
Listing expenses (including auditors’  EMRY (B TXEBHE
remuneration for other services ZE MRS BRI £ )
separately disclosed below) 11,318 -
Auditors’ remuneration ZENRDE &
— audit services —ZERT 850 28
— other services (note) — H A AR (FfzE) 2,088 -

RERSERARAT —E-HEETH




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

EEE L))

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

7

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 7 BREiANEF (8)
Note: An amount of $522,000 non-audit service fee payable to the M : R=T—RF=A=1+—80 "' BERQ
auditor in relation to the listing of the Company’s share on the ARGRBE=_ZT—RHF=A=1+—
Main Board of the Stock Exchange during the year ended 31 B 1E 4 [E PR B A BT AR i if B A A%
March 2015 had been recognised as a prepayment at 31 March AT H) FEIZ B AR 75 28 522,000 7T B FERR
2015. REMNFE -
INCOME TAX 8 FREH
(@) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a) HmAEBEFIKHEMEEmKIER
profit or loss and other comprehensive income NEPR1STiE -
reprESentS:
2015 2014
—E-EF — T
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Current tax A HABI1E
Provision for Hong Kong Profits ~ AFEE R B ESREE
Tax for the year 16,723 12,159
Notes: MisE -

(ii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and
the BVI.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated
at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the
year, taking into account a reduction of 75% of the
tax payable for the year of assessment 2014-15 subject
to a maximum reduction of $20,000 granted by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “Government”) for each business (2014:
a reduction of 75% of the tax payable for the year of
assessment 2013-14 subject to a maximum reduction of
$10,000 for each business and was taken into account
in calculating the provision for 2014).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

E E SR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

8 INCOME TAX (continued) 8 FrEH (&)
(b)  Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b) RERAHUEFENFESHHR
accounting profit before taxation at applicable S B RR AT = A A A BR
tax rate: W
2015 2014
—E-hfF —TOF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Profit before taxation o 250 B A 89,376 73,136
Notional tax on profit before FRAE A4 Al ) 2 = B IE
taxation, calculated at the (RBEBFEHRAOTF =
Hong Kong Profits 16.5% T8 )
Tax rate of 16.5% 14,747 12,067
Tax effect of non-deductible AR 2 B 75 s 2
expenses 1,976 99
Tax effect of deductible REER A TR T R =58
temporary differences BB E
not recognised 20 3
Statutory tax concession EEMBESR (20) (10)
Actual income tax expense ERMEHAS 16,723 12,159
() Income tax in the consolidated statement of (0 MRMEMBRARPFAERTE

financial position represents:

2015 2014
—E-EHfF —FT-F
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Current taxation ARHAFLIE
Provision for Hong Kong Profits ~ FREEFIEGH #E
Tax for the year 16,723 12,159
Provisional Profits Tax paid B HFEE (5,616) (14,501)
11,107 (2,342)
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax 75 BB & & &
payable relating to prior years BENET 4 9,597 11,939
Tax payable JER IR 20,704 9,597
(d) There were no material unrecognised deferred d) R-ZT—FER-_T—O4F
tax assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2015 and

—A=+-8. tEEAK
2014, BRI EAER A -

REZFZERBRAT —FT-AFFR




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B &M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 9

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows:

EEFM

BRI B D 15 383 R A A
(BRAERBFIARZ HE) ROIE
2HFRE 2 EFEHMT

Year ended 31 March 2015
BZE-_Z-1RF=F=1-ALEFE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' and benefits scheme
fees in kind Bonuses contributions Total
A4
EZHe  RENAE AL RBIGHEIES EH
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i i T i
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Lau Pak Man AfaxrsE 460 - 9 469
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong HRERE 460 - 9 469
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit (Note (iii)) B20a L (B i) 1,068 - 18 1,086
Independent non-executive BUkHTES
directors*
Mr. Leung Chi Kin PRELE - - - =
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis MEERE - = = =
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EFEE
(also known as lao Chi Meng) - - - -
Total e 1,988 - 36 2,024
& The independent non-executive directors were appointed on 26 * BYRTES IR _ET—HF=A

March 2015.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

E E SR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

9

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
(continued)

9

EEHFM (&)

Year ended 31 March 2014
BEZ-WE-A=-T-HIEFE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme
fees in kind Bonuses  contributions Total
4 28R
ik ENfls fEiT RIRGTEIER B
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr it i T
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Lau Pak Man L=t - 80 - 4 84
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong PRETHE - 80 - 4 84
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit (Note (iii)) B2 ot (M i) - 955 236 15 1,206
Total et - 1,115 236 23 1,374
Notes: BtsE -
(i) No director received any emoluments from the Group as (i) RER - BEES A ASBIKEREM

(iii)

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year. No director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years
ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

The Company did not have any share option scheme for the
purchase of ordinary shares in the Company during the years
ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit was appointed as executive director of the
Company on 29 September 2014.

Ms. Kwan was the assistant project manager of ICL, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, before being appointed as
executive director of the Company. Her remuneration disclosed
above includes those for services rendered by her as the assistant
project manager of ICL.

(ii)

M ERRSMARRBLMARE
Bz g REKBERAHE - BIEES
RBZE-_Z-—HFR_F-NFE=A
=+ —RIEFERERREREEM
i

REE-F-AER-F-ME=A
SRR AR RLEEAB
HAR R ERBR MRS -

BRLREIR=_F—NEAA=TAI
PEZRERARRMITES -

BRI REERAARATEEINR
ERBRARRRRZENBARRE
BEMBBHEELRE - RZMEER
EXHRE - BRERECRERENE
AR EEMRERS S -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B &M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

10 EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

(@) Emoluments of five highest paid
individuals
The five highest paid individuals of the Group
during the year include one (2014: one) director
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

10

TfuGEeEHFMALRSR

EIRE 2 Fr N

(a)

HEURSEHMA L 25 H

RERREE TR %
AL BREEZHRH R h IR
BEN—2BF(ZF—WF:
—%) c BRAEBALTZEHM

(b)
Other than the emoluments of the directors and
five highest paid individuals disclosed in notes
9 and 10(a), the emoluments of the remaining
senior management fell within the following

remaining individuals are as follows: MEBIAT
2015 2014
—E-AF —_TNOF
$'000 $'000
Frx T
Salaries, allowances and e R REYNE
benefits in kind 2,147 1,901
Discretionary bonuses BIEIEAT 652 706
Retirement scheme contributions E{R&t &k 70 60
2,869 2,667
The emoluments of the above individuals are FMATEMBO TSGR
within the following bands:
2015 2014
—EB-Hf —TWF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A" ABL
Nil to $1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 4 4
Emoluments of senior management (b) SREEEHNMHE

FREEEI R 10() TR BEME S
EAfusmHMALTZME
S BTRREEBHNME

& T8

band:
2015 2014
—EB-Hf ZTWF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AH
Nil to $1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 1 -

In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2015




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

E E SR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of $72,653,000
(2014: $60,977,000) and the weighted average
of 639,043,836 shares in issue after adjusting
for the issuance of new shares (see note 21(c)
(i) and the capitalisation issue (see note 21(c)
(iii)) during the year (2014: weighted average of
639,000,000 shares in issue after adjusting for
the capitalisation issue in 2015).

(b) Diluted earnings per share
There were no diluted potential shares in
existence during the years ended 31 March 2015
and 2014.

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BRER

BRERZR
FRERBF LA DB S
fi% 5 & {5 34 %1 72,653,000 7T
(=Z = — /g 4 : 60,977,000
TC) R ERETH KRG (R
B EE21(0) (i) R E AL BT
(RLMFE 21(c)(ii) AEE 22
%% 17639,043,836 % fin #E F
BFE (- —NEFE: gt = F
—RAFERNBITABREE
%%17639,000,000 A& hntE T 15
B E -

BREFER
REE-FTE—AFR=F
—mWEF=A=Z=+—8BItF
£ - BHEEEEERG o

12 9% BEK&E

Plantand  Leasehold Motor Office
machinery improvements vehicles  equipment Total
BERKE HENZEE RE BOERE at
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
T S T A T
Cost: A
At 1 April 2013 RZE-=EmA-A 955 643 1,045 1,464 4,658
Additions HE 53 - 209 12 279
Disposals irk - - (60) - (60)
At 31 March 2014 RZF-ME=A=1-A ______1,_09§ ________ b fB_________________j,]?ll_______],£17_6 _______ 4},5_37_7__
At 1 April 2014 RZZ-MERA-A 1,008 643 1,194 1,476 4877
Additions hE 54 - - 9% 165
At 31 March 2015 R-E-RE=A=1-H ______1,_0_62_ ________ b fB_________________j,]?A_______],?ZO _______ §,(_)1£2__
Accumulated depreciation: Z5H7E :
At 1 April 2013 RZZE-Z4NA-R 580 591 527 1,369 3,617
Charge for the year ERRx 159 5 301 40 554
Witten back on disposals i EE&RE - - (60) - (60)
At 31 March 2014 R-F-ME=A=t-B ] 7 §9 ________ b fB___________________76_8_______1{1(29 _______ 4},]1_1__
At 1 April 2014 RZE-WENA-A 739 643 768 1,409 4111
Charge for the year ERFER 163 - M 53 493
At 31 March 2015 R-F-2FZA=t-B ¢ 9 92 ________ b fB_________________1,94:1_______],4[32 _______ 1}@0_4__
Net book value: IREFE
At 31 March 2015 RZF-RF=A=1-H 160 = 153 108 438
At 31 March 2014 RZF-ME=A=1-A 269 = 426 67 766

RERZFEZERABRAF
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(continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(@) Fixed assets held under finance leases
Certain machinery was held under finance leases
and its net book value is analysed as follows:

12 % - BEK®RE (E)

() mEHESHEIMSENETEEE
ETHSFDINBMEHEERT
A RKENREFED T

otherwise stated.

13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

U
2015 2014
—2-nf _—ZT@OF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fx
Cost — Capitalised finance leases KA —&EAXLRERE 699 699
Accumulated depreciation Z2EinE (629) (419)
Net book value BREDFE 70 280

13 RMBLRZRE
TREAFEENBEL RS -
BIESEHE  ARROEBIAL
B o

Proportion of ownership interest

In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2015

it LA
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation issued and effective  Held by the Held by a

Name of company and business paid-up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activity

ELA EBORA LN
ARER RE£E BRARE REEGES fis  WROAAME  IEEE
In Construction (BVI) Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
In Construction (BVI) Limited RERAEE 1R1ETZRE 100% 100% - REBR
In Construction Limited Hong Kong 9,300,000 shares 100% - 100%  Construction and engineering
REREERAR & 9,300,000 Ak {2 100% - 100%  BEIR



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

E E SR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 B REMERFRIE
2015 2014
—E—HF —Z—MF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Trade debtors FEURBR R 38,549 57,403
Deposits, prepayments and other Ze - TE SRR EMERGRIE
receivables (note (i) (PR EE ) 5,563 7,554
Retentions receivable (note (ii)) FEWIRE & (B&E (i) 65,488 61,459
Amounts due from shareholders FE W AR B R A (B R i)
(note (iii)) - 91,493
109,600 217,909
Notes: BsE -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(a)

Except for an amount of $1,644,000 (2014: $926,000) as at 31
March 2015, which is expected to be recovered or recognised
as expense after one year, all of the remaining balances of the
Group are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense

within one year.

Except for an amount of $24,593,000 (2014: $22,358,000) as
at 31 March 2015, which is expected to be recovered after one
year, all of the remaining balances are expected to be recovered

within one year.

The amounts due from shareholders at 31 March 2014 were
unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of repayment.
The amounts were fully settled during the year ended 31 March
2015.

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are
trade debtors, based on the invoice date (net of
allowance for doubtful debts) with the following
ageing analysis at the end of the reporting
period:

(i) BR-_Z—HFE=ZA=+—HBHLE
1,644,000 7T ( = Z — M4 £ : 926,000
L) BHR —F R E S ER AR
SN REBABREERR —FAK
Bl ERRBFRE

(ii) BT HE=ZA=+—HEE
24,593,000 7T (= Z — P4 : 22,358,000
JC) TEEAR — SR I EI AN - BT BARETE
BN —FAYE -

@iy RHR-TE-—EOF=A=+—8  EBKEK
RARAREER - Tt B REEEE
RE - BARERBE—T—HEF=
A=+ —HIEFERBERER -

AR DA

FHAE 5 R H AR WK IR
R - NHEHRIR
R A B (R RERE) K
AT

(a)

2015 2014

—E-RE —ZE—UF

$'000 $'000

Fr Tt

Within 1 month —@AR 38,499 52,733
1 to 2 months —ZMEA - -
2 to 3 months E =18 A - =
Over 3 months =EANE 100 4,670
38,549 57,403

RERZFEZERABRAF



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B &M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(9

Ageing analysis (continued)

Trade debtors are normally due within 14-30
days from the date of billing. Further details
on the Group's credit policy are set out in note
22(a).

Impairment of trade debtors
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade debtors directly (see
note 2(g)(i)).

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, none of the
Group's trade debtors were considered to be
impaired.

Trade debtors that are not impaired
Receivables which were neither past due nor
impaired related to a range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables which were past due but not
impaired related to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

m In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2015
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B 5 Kk EARURIE ()

(a)

(b)

(c)

AR 4T (48)
EWERAEAMAEB SR
14Z30RANE|E - BEAARS
BEEERRZE—DSFEH
MM EE22(a) ©

FE W R OB E

B B W R SRR E B 1R
ABERAR RIEXAEH
EMEEEBATARIE &£
HERT  BEBEEZRSE
FEMS AR R 3 (L BSRE2(9))

R-E—BFR-_T—NF
ZA=t—8 HBEAEE
FEMS BRFRAAR RIRUE

$2 L {EL PR W PR SK

B 4 380 A 7 B 0B 1B ) B LR
HEETETHZNEL N
EFEE -

1 HA 18 S R (B A B Wk IR B
ETHASEHRARTER
EHEMNBIEP AR - ER
BEZS EEEHEES
% B A R AT TR (B A
RAREEERIBEAE
B RMBREHERBRIDA 28K
8] o



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

E E SR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 15 RERBITEER
(a) Cash and bank balances comprise: () HRERMBITHKERE:
2015 2014
—2-1F _—T@mOF
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
Cash at bank and in hand IRITRFERE 137 3,097
Deposits with banks RITFER 70,021 49,917
Cash and bank balances in AP ERR RS
the consolidated statement KERITHERR
of financial position 70,158 53,014
Less: Restricted bank balances A IR BRI TAE SR (FRE)
(note) (70,021) (49,917)
Bank overdrafts BITES (5,032) (131)
Cash and cash equivalents in FelRensxkTHe
the consolidated cash RIRESEEY
flow statement (4,895) 2,966

Note:

Restricted bank balances are deposits placed in banks
to secure the bank overdraft facilities of the Group (see
note 19) and the issuance of performance bonds (see
note 24(a)).

e :  RRHRITAS/EFNRT
ZEFAERAKERTE
XER(RMFE19) REHE
#HRE (RHTRE24@)) °

RERZFEZERABRAF

t-

—=



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B &M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued) 15 R&RIRITAER (&)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before (b) BRBANHFEKEFRBRSE
taxation to cash generated from ZHHER
operations:
2015 2014
“Z-1F “T-E
Note $'000 $'000
(s T T
Operating activities REED
Profit before taxation BRHE AR A 89,376 73,136
Adjustments for: BT IR -
Bank interest income BITFIBMA 5 (505) (792)
Interest income from finance EhmERENS WA
lease receivables 5 (300) (397)
Finance costs BEKA 7(a) 431 413
Depreciation neE 7(c) 493 554
Net gain on disposal of property, — HEM% - BE KL E
plant and equipment s 6 - (12)
Changes in working capital: HEEAEE :
Increase in trade and other B 5 R E h fEUIAE M
receivables 11,619 (4,370)
Decrease/(increase) in gross EREFANIRNE
amounts due from customers aER D,/ (45m)
for contract work 23,744 (55,791)
(Decrease)/increase in trade E 5 REMENFUB
and other payables (R4, #10 (70,836) 28,794
Decrease in gross amounts due ERNEPENIENE
to customers for contract work sERL (3,816) (21,558)
Cash generated from operations & fEHE 50,206 19,977
(c) Major non-cash transactions () EEHFREXH
During the year ended 31 March 2015, REBEE-_ZET—HF=A1
dividends of $156,000,000 payable to the then =+—BItEE: ENE
shareholders of ICL were set off against the EEEERANREZKE
“Amounts due from shareholders”. 156,000,000 7T 72 [ fE Y A% ER

RO | 3 o

In addition, the amounts due to the then BEAN - EENIREREERN
shareholders of ICL, in an aggregate amount of B% & % 18 ( & 59,300,000
$59,300,000, were capitalised by the Company JT ) AR R 7 & A (M 5
(note 21(c)(iii)). 21(c)(ii)) °

In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

EEE LAY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

16 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO 16 EW ENEF&#HT

CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK ERIEEEE
2015 2014
—®-af —T@mOF
$'000 $'000
T FT

Gross amounts due from customers EWREFESHNIREREHAE
for contract work

Contract costs incurred plus recognised B ZE4A 4IRANNE R

profits less recognised losses AR B MR AR 1,396,945 1,379,693

Less: Progress billings received B PG R RIE
and receivable (1,296,817) (1,255,821)
100,128 123,872

Gross amounts due to customers EAEFEHNIRREHE
for contract work

Progress billings received and receivable & W5 & U & 7008 7,074 41,010
Less: Contract costs incurred plus W BEEESKKAINE R
recognised profits less w AR E iR 1A
recognised losses (6,899) (37,019)
175 3,991
All gross amounts due from/to customers for contract FTAERYEREP &K TIRNIE
work are expected to be recovered/settled within one 4aZEFE AR A —F AUk E4EE o
year.
17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 17 B3 REMENRE
2015 2014
—B-RHE —ZT0F
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Trade creditors FERTBR TR 92,799 136,297
Other payables and accruals HAh B RIB R ERTE R 6,184 33,522
98,983 169,819

REZFZERBRAT —FT-AFFR




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

EEE L))

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 17 EZ Rk HAthfE{5RIE (&)

Included in trade and other payables are trade AR S REMENFIBEN AR
creditors, based on invoice date, with the following BRFR - R HIRIZ 2R A R ER
ageing analysis at the end of the reporting period: DATER
2015 2014
—E-hF —"TNOF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Within 1 month —@ARA 20,839 24,861
1 to 2 months —E=MEA 17,422 23,660
2 to 3 months Mz =1EA 7,796 32,378
Over 3 months =@ANRE 46,742 55,398
92,799 136,297
18 FINANCE LEASES 18 BEHRE
(a) Finance lease receivables (a) EWmEHRERE
At 31 March 2015, the Group had finance lease R—E—RHEF=ZA=+—
receivables as follows: H- - AEBE%ES QT ERE
AHERE
2015 2014
ZEZ-1F ZT-MEF
Present value of Present value of

the minimum ~ Total minimum ~ the minimum ~ Total minimum
lease payments lease payments  lease payments  lease payments
BEEE RERE REHE REHE
BER IHAE NHBE [fes

$'000 §'000 $'000 $'000
T SR T T
Within 1 year = 286 30 - 3007
After 1 year but within 2 years ~ —%f& + BRRERM 2,929 3,027 2,826 3,027
After 2 years but within 5 years M f + BRAERA 1,201 1,215 4,130 4,242
AW s
6,956 7,269 9,683 10,29
Less: total unearned finance income i : KEAREUNEE (313) (613)
Present value of lease receivables MRS FBBE 6,956 9,683
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MR ML (4)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

18 FINANCE LEASES (continued) 18 WEMRE(8)

(b) Obligations under finance leases (b) MEHRERE
At 31 March 2015, the Group had obligations R-_ZE—RAF=A=+—
under finance leases repayable as follows: H RNEEHEEWNERN
ARG IR 2 A
2015 2014
“E-1fF “T-mE

Present value of
the minimum
lease payments

Present value of
Total minimum the minimum ~ Total minimum
lease payments ~ lease payments  lease payments

BEEE RERE RERE RIEAE
ARRE BEL S EEIE fises
§'000 §'000 $'000 $'000
i i r r
Within 1 year -#® 2 _,8_2_5 _________ 3 _,0_2_7 _________ 2_,9_3_2 _________ 3_2_3_6_ i
After 1 year but within 2 years ~ —%f + BRRER 2,929 3,027 2,826 3,027
After 2 years but within Syears %% - BARER 1,201 1,215 4,130 4,242
. ML aa s iy
6,956 7,269 9,888 10,505
Less: total future interest expenses 5 : BEAFISHx 48 (313) (617)
Present value of lease obligations ~ FEAEZR(E 6,956 9,888

19 BANK OVERDRAFTS-SECURED

19

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, bank overdrafts were

secured and guaranteed by:

legal charge with assignment of all rental in
relation to three properties held by related
companies, namely Paramount Design &
Construction Limited and Angus Limited at
31 March 2015 (2014: five properties held by
related companies, namely Paramount Design &
Construction Limited, Angus Limited, In Holdings
Limited and KPJV Limited);

charge over the fixed deposits placed with banks
amounting to $32,000,000 (2014: $6,000,000)
at 31 March 2015; and

unlimited personal guarantees provided by
shareholders of the Company.

RITEX — O
R-F—ASER-F—MNFE=A
=+—B - RTEXH THIERE
IBIR -

- R-ZE—RHE=ZA=+-—
B #EEaEEH G EE
XIRRERARREZHER
AR FEENZEYE(=Z
—OF - EEAK AR (BE
XTIRARAA THER
A®] > In Holdings Limited A
KPJV Limited) # B HIEY
¥) MR A EH AR

- WRZZE—FRF=ZA=+—H
% %8 /32,000,000t( = &
— P94 : 6,000,0007T ) R 1T
EHRTFROAL : &

—  ARERRER bR R ) E
AFEIR ©

RERSERARAT —E-HEETH
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B R MY AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

19

20

21

BANK OVERDRAFTS-SECURED 19 TEX-BERE)
(continued)
Certain pledge of properties and unlimited personal AEBRRER-_ZE—NFE=A
guarantees provided by shareholders of the Group as = +—HAEEOETMEERKE
at 31 March 2014 were released in October 2014. The & FREABERER - —NFE+
remaining pledge of properties and unlimited personal FERR o gR MR 3 KRR L BIAR
guarantees provided by shareholders of the Group RREEMERGIEAZRR S
were replaced by guarantees of the Company in June —RFENABRRRERRK ©
2015.
LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDERS 20 BREER
The loans from shareholders are unsecured, interest- BRRERSEERR  AHERER
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The TEIRFE o AEEATE BRI Hh S AR
balances are expected to be repayable after more than BM—FERER
one year from the end of the reporting period.
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 21 BEAXKFEE
(@) Movement in components of equity (a) HZARBD 225
The reconciliation between the opening and AEBLEERSHK D
closing balances of each component of the REY R B R & ¥ IR E R
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the REEmEEEK - ARAR
consolidated statement of changes in equity. B K HA SR 2 {8 A BR AN 78 A
Details of the Company’s individual components o2 ERR X
of equity between the beginning and the end of
the period are set out below:
The Company
NG|
Share Share  Accumulated
capital premium loss Total
B& R EE ZitEE @i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Tr T T Tr
Balance at 29 September 2014 R=E-BEAA=TIA
(date of incorporation) &R (ZMRLAE) - - = =
Issuance of new shares (note 21(c)(i) BTG (FE21(00) 10 - - 10
Avrising from Reorganisation (note 21(c)(il)) EZEAMELE (HzE21(0)) 10 45,242 - 45,252
Capitalisation issue (note 21(c)ii) BER{EEAT (FiFE21(0)Gi) 6,380 52,920 - 59,300
Loss and total comprehensive income %WET&&?EWM@%E
for the period - - (11,668) (11,668)
Balance at 31 March 2015 R-E-E£=A=1-H
&8 6,400 98,162 (11,668) 92,894
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E E SR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) Dividends
(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2015, a
dividend of $186,000,000 was declared to
the then shareholders by ICL.

(i)  Dividend payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable for the year

21 BEXKfFHE(E)
(b) KA
() REE-—E—RE=A
=+—BIFE @R
EREEHORRSE
f% 2. 186,000,000 JT °

(i) BERAFEENEMNA
NAEE RS

2015 2014
—E-HF  —Z-@OF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Final dividend proposed RS R EEIR AR HIRR S
after the end of the BREBR3 D
reporting period of ZER—PUE ;)
3 cents (2014: Nil) per
ordinary share 24,900 -

The final dividend proposed after the
end of the reporting period has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

R EHREEIK Z R
HIfR B - W ERER SR
SHRRZEE -

RERSERARAT —E-HEETH
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EEE L))

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ TR )

21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 21 EAKf#E (&)

(c) Share capital (0 EKB=X
The Company
b NG|
2015
—E-1F
No. of
shares Amount
BRAHE 8
$'000
Tr
Authorised-ordinary shares EE-BR0.01 TZEBER
of $0.01 each:
At 29 September 2014 RZZ—MEAAZT B

(date of incorporation) Gaiijzava=p:i) 38,000,000 380
Increase in authorised share BB TRRAE A (B2 (i)

capital (note (ii)) 1,962,000,000 19,620
At 31 March 2015 RZZE-A%=A=+—H 2,000,000,000 20,000
Ordinary shares, issued and BER BRITRAE:

fully paid:

At 29 September 2014 RZZ-—MFEAA=T B

(date of incorporation) (Galiinavazh:)

(note (i) GE0) 1 -
Issuance of new shares (note (i) {73 (HIFEG)) 999,999 10
Issuance of new shares upon REBIEEITEIRN (7 (i)

Reorganisation (note (ii)) 1,000,000 10
Capitalisation issue (note (iii)) B 24T (IR Gii) 638,000,000 6,380
At 31 March 2015 RZZE-A%=A=+—H 640,000,000 6,400
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled LB IS A A A U EL B
to receive dividends as declared from time to BRZEE  WEHEEEARRD
time and are entitled to one vote per share at AIREAE FAFRARGD
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares —Z . TEEERMAR A
rank equally with regard to the Company’s ZHBREBEEMS Y EZEMEE
residual assets. HAT o
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E E SR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHI7R)

21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 21 EAKf#E (&)

(c) Share capital (continued) () BAE(E)
Notes: BESE
(i) The Company was incorporated on 29 September [0) ARARRZZT—MENA

2014 with an authorised share capital of $380,000
divided into 38,000,000 shares of $0.01 each. Upon
incorporation, 1 share was allotted and issued at par
value for cash. On 1 October 2014, 999,999 shares were
further allotted and issued at par value for cash.

On 16 March 2015, pursuant to the written resolutions
of the shareholders of the Company, the authorised
share capital of the Company was increased from
38,000,000 shares to 2,000,000,000 shares by the
creation of additional 1,962,000,000 shares, ranking
pari passu in all respects with the shares in issue as at the
date of passing of the written resolution.

On the same date, the then shareholders of ICL
transferred to the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary,
In Construction (BVI) Limited, their entire interest in ICL
at the aggregate consideration of $45,252,000 which
was satisfied by the Company allotting and issuing
1,000,000 new shares.

Upon the completion of the Reorganisation on 16 March
2015, the Company became the holding company of the
Group.

Since the Reorganisation was not completed on 31
March 2014, the share capital as at 31 March 2014
represented the share capital of ICL only. The share
capital as at 31 March 2015 represented the share
capital of the Company.

On 20 March 2015, the Company, ICL and its then
shareholders entered into a deed of transfer, pursuant
to which the obligations and liabilities under the
amounts due from ICL to its then shareholders, in an
aggregate amount of $59,300,000 were transferred
from ICL to the Company.

On the same date, pursuant to the written resolutions of
the shareholders of the Company, such amounts due to
the then shareholders of ICL, in an aggregate amount of
$59,300,000 were capitalised by the Company allotting
and issuing 638,000,000 new shares, credited as fully
paid, to the shareholders of the Company.

ZTABEMK - EERA
/3380,0007T * 9 /38,000,000
REREE0.01 T2 BiD - R
FEMAC L% - FREE AR B B
1T1RRRRD - LARERE - K=
T—ME+A—AB E—HK
T8 BE 8 & 397 999,999 i% AR
D REREE ©

R=ZZ—RAF=A+xA"
BB AR AR ENEER
FER KD A FEEREN
1,962,000,000 % & 13 &9 77 =\
#6555 E B AN Fr 38,000,000 %A%
153 # 40 Z 2,000,000,000 A% A%
7 REERAZRERBER
EMBFEEEEITRNAR
RIEHAT -

RE B - REREEE AR
RAARAAEHEENBARIN
Construction (BVI) Limited &%
RENIREZ A 2 TPARE -
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BN f#tE ()
(d) REENMEEREDR

21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 21

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(e)

(i) Share premium
The share premium account is governed by
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and may be applied by the Company
subject to the provisions, if any, of its

(i) KRR E
B RERAASES
RNELERE - ARAR
A = AR RS2 14 9 R sk
% 2 B AT AR i E 4B A

memorandum and articles of association in =R E NSO E3
paying distributions or dividends to equity (E)BBRMDEE
shareholders. R o

No distribution or dividend may be paid to
the equity shareholders out of the share
premium account unless immediately
following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company will be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course

BIFEREZZE N NIK
HAEE B RARAR
AR A E g 2
HMER - BRI A
JR RS 1348 B8 B A ) 2
BRI

of business.
(ii) Capital reserve (i) EXRREE
The capital reserve was created as a result BRREHEBEBEAR AT

of the Reorganisation to rationalise the
group structure in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2015, the aggregate amount of
the Company's reserves available for distribution
to equity shareholders of the Company, as
calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands and the Company'’s
memorandum and articles of association, was
$86,494,000. After the end of the reporting
period the directors proposed a final dividend
of 3 cents per ordinary share (2014: $Nil),
amounting to $24,900,000 (note 21(b)). This
dividend has not been recognised as a liability at
the end of the reporting period.
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21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(f) Capital management
The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern in order to fund
its construction business, provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Government requires contractors on the
list of approved contractors for public works
(the “List”) to maintain such minimum working
capital as the Government may from time to time
determine (the “Required Minimum Working
Capital”). A subsidiary of the Company is subject
to the Required Minimum Working Capital as the
subsidiary is a contractor on the List. Except for
this, neither the Company nor of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group
to manage these risks are described below.

21

22

BARK M ()

() BrEE
AEEEREANEEAE
RRBAE BB EEEE
BEEEENRE S - UBE
REXBRE  AREER
145 - 1R B8k R L A 4 2 A
A AR - I M B
B ARIEE RALA o

REE AR KL E SRS ME
BHERRE  NEFKS
PR E 5 (B R RS BB IRA]
BER) ERRESMRHE
ZRREBZEOHTE - AR
R BN = B B &K
RIBELRE -

B ERKATIRA AR TIE
ES e 45 RS DN F S <
BESHBRETEEENE
ARR2EEAN([HHERK
LEEAX]) - ARE—HEH
BRARIXEERKEEEAR
WRE RESZHE AR
REA B AR o BRIt IA
SN RAE REWE AR
RN ONEB I INE AR E B R
fR -

PMYAREEREMIA
HAFE

AEE B EBBRDATEE -
RBASRAIRASR - AEBEST
ZEABEAEEANEEREA
B 0 B 7 L TR AR
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
bank deposits and trade and other receivables.
The Group has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with
sound credit ratings and the Group has exposure
limit to any single financial institution. Given
their high credit ratings, management does not
expect any of these financial institutions and
counterparties will fail to meet their obligations.

In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed as
part of the acceptance procedures for new
construction contracts. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 14-30 days from
the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has significant concentration of credit risk in a
few customers. In view of their credit standing,
good payment record and long established
relationships with the Group, management
does not consider the Group’s credit risk to be
significant. At 31 March 2015, 21% (2014: 0%)
and 45% (2014: 30%) of the total trade debtors
was due from the Group's largest customer and
the Group's five largest customers respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 14.
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 22 Bi¥REREERESHTIA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL HAFE (8)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) REBESEMR
Individual subsidiaries within the Group are AEEBETHERWE AR
responsible for their own cash management, HHEBGNBRSEEER -
including the raising of loans to cover the BEESENELUERRE
expected cash demands. The Group's policy is to ERke REB HEREH
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity ERERLERRSEST
requirements and its compliance with lending EPURHEBETERELEZ
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient B MERESEHNE S
reserves of cash and adequate committed HEEREETESREERN
funding lines from major financial institutions to TRAHMEREE  Kimm
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and CRARRAZRBEST
longer term. 2.
Given the loans from shareholders at 31 March ERR=ZZTE—RFER=F
2015 and 2014 had no fixed repayment terms —MHFE=A=+—HBHKRE
(see note 20), it is not practical to disclose their B 3R 4 B 7 2 2R (BB R
remaining contractual maturities at the end 20) « IEREHIRE B 64
of the reporting period. Except for these, the TAHEEHAB B -
following table details the remaining contractual BRI DASN - T REFILAE E
maturities at the end of the reporting period SREERRERROBT
of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are AHNEEA BERELHR
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows WIRB R (BEERELF
(including interest payments computed using RAEWMF BN WAEF
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates B A ERIREHRA BN
current at the end of the reporting period) and F=E) RAREE A HERERE
the earliest date the Group can be required to MxEAE :
pay:
At 31 March 2015
R=Z-1F=A=+-A
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount  cashflow ondemand 2 years 5 years
BEHANE 0k BR-F RENL
IREE BER REX  EORWE EIRILE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
r r r r r
Bank overdrafts-secured FITEL -BER 5,032 5,032 5,032 - -
Trade creditors FERTHRSR 92,799 92,799 92,799 - -
Obligations under finance ~ BRATR &Rz
leases 6,956 7,269 3,027 3,027 1,215
104,787 105,100 100,858 3,027 1,215
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 22 Bi#REREERERIEA

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL A FE (&
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELER (E)
At 31 March 2014
RZZ-IE=A=+—-A
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within Tyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years
BANAIE —ERyg  BEF MELE
A HEn BREL  ALNmE  EIREE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i I S 7 i
Bank overdrafts - secured  SR4TEY - AR 131 131 131 - -
Trade creditors BB 136,297 136,297 136,297 - -
Obligations under finance ~ BRETREAIE
leases 9,888 10,505 3,236 3,027 4,242
146,316 146,933 139,664 3,027 4,242
(c) Interest rate risk () FIEmEpS
At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group did not RZE—RFR_FT—NF
hold any assets and liabilities which are exposed ZA=+—8 ' AEETE
to significant interest risk. HFAE T EREKNNEER
WEERAE -
(d) Foreign currency risk (d) SMNERBE
The Group’s functional currency is Hong Kong REEBNNEEE AT -
dollars. At 31 March 2015, the Group's currency RZE—RF=ZA=+—
risk is primarily attributable to deposits with H AEERNEERREE
banks of $23,000,000 (2014: $Nil) denominated SRRUARE(TARE])
in the Renminbi (“RMB"). Assuming that the HI| {8 & #R 17 77 5 23,000,000
RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% at 31 TT(ZFE—WMFE: &) )
March 2015 and the changes had been applied BN —_E—RAF=A=1+—
to the Group's exposure to currency risk for those BAREHE E5%H
deposits at that date, with other variables held ZEEEHERZEERRD
constant, the Group’s profit after tax and total AREBEZEGFERTEGNE
equity would increase/decrease by approximately BE R mEMmEEREET
$960,000. B RIZR & B A BR A 1208 A
R BRI M, w4
960,000 7T °
The exposure to currency risk as referred to XA EEERIEEEE
above represents management’s assessment of a st EE N —RAEERE
reasonably possible change in exchange rate over HEEAR LR ZSIEE
the period until next annual reporting date. REE) o
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23 COMMITMENTS

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 22 B¥EREEREMIA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL A FE(E)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair values measurement (e) AFEFE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial RZTE—RFR-_ZT—NOF
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are ZA=+—8 ' A&EEIZK
not materially different from their fair values as at R EHKN AT ENSRT
31 March 2015 and 2014. BRREEEKRENATE
EEADNRE -
23 &IE
(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March @ R-—E—mE=A=+—8
2015 not provided for in the financial statements FAZR B 75 35 5 ok 3 4 B A 1)
were as follows: $1E§§$7¥K%KZDT ]
2015 2014
—E-HF —TOF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Contracted for BEAT4) 28,240 =

(b) At 31 March 2015, the Group's total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases were payable as follows:

(b)

RZEBE-—RHF=ZA=+—
B A& E R R BUS &
EHEBRTARREEEN
AT

2015 2014

—E-hfF —TOF

$'000 $'000

Fr T

Within 1 year —FN 912 242
After 1 year but within 5 years  —&FRE&ERFR 1,077 180
1,989 422

The Group is the lessee in respect of an office and
items of office equipment held under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 5 years, with an option to renew the lease
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

AEEREEHEEERTRES
—BRRERBRAEREBE
BREAHEA - MR HEER
RAEF  WAEERREND
EREREEEEBD - B
EHNBRIAES -

RERZFEZERABRAF
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24 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

At 31 March 2015, the Group had contingent
liabilities in respect of performance bonds to
guarantee for the due and proper performance
of the objections undertaken by the Group's
subsidiaries for projects amounting to
$82,226,000 (2014: $90,659,000).

In February 2013, abnormal ground settlement
occurred adjacent to a site at Ma Tau Wai Road
during the early stages of works, resulting in
a suspension of the works for approximately
five months from February to June 2013. The
Group was granted consent by the Buildings
Department to resume work in June 2013.
Eventually, the works for this project was
completed in February 2015. Subject to the
customer granting extension of time, the Group
may, however, be liable for liquidated damages
payable to the customer in the amount of
$5,100,000 due to delay in the completion of the
works pursuant to the terms of the contract.

As at 31 March 2015 and up to the date of issue
of these financial statements, the Group had
not received any claim for damages from any
third party arising from or in connection with
this project nor any claim for liquidated damages
from the customer of this project.

The directors of the Company are of the view
that the likelihood of the customer and/or the
owners of the adjoining properties making
successful claims against the Group is remote
based on an advice provided by the legal counsel
of the Company. Accordingly no provision for
potential liquidated damages or potential claims
from the customer and/or the owners of the
adjoining properties have been made in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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24 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(o)

Foundation works carried out for a project at
Hing Hon Road (the “Site”) commenced in
March 2014 and was originally expected to be
completed in November 2014 according to the
project’s letter of award. On 4 September 2014,
a building adjacent to the Site (the “Building”)
tilted towards the Site. Foundation works at the
Site had been suspended since 5 September
2014. The directors of the Company, leveraging
on their experience in the industry, are of the
view that the project will be delayed by not
more than 16 months, and in the event that the
customer does not grant an extension to the
completion of the contract in accordance with its
terms, the Group may face claims for liquidated
damages of up to $9,800,000.

As at 31 March 2015 and up to the date of issue
of these financial statements, the Group had
not received any claim for damages from any
third party arising from or in connection with
this project nor any claim for liquidated damages
from the customers in the project.

The directors are of the view that the prospect of
a successful claim from the owners or occupiers
of the Building or the customer against the
Group is limited based on an advice provided by
the legal counsel of the Company. Accordingly,
no provision for potential liquidated damages or
potential claims from the owners or occupiers of
the Building or the customer have been made in
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

24 HAREME (&)

(o)
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25 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 25 EXEBAIRZ

TRANSACTIONS

(@ In addition to the transactions and balances (a) BRUBHREREMITDAEE
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, MR 5 REEHRIN  KEER
the Group entered into the following material RNEFTMIA T ERBEEH TR
related party transaction during the year: 5

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—NOF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Rental expenses paid to a related B2+ —FEEE A RMHES
company 804 804
Note: The directors of the Company are of opinion that the Mk - AAREEZRE LS
above transactions were entered into in the normal T B ¥R BIRP RN ©
course of business.

(b) Remuneration of key management personnel, by FTEEBAEMNFM(EIE
including amounts paid to the directors as ENESHNEE) RIFEIH
disclosed in note 9 and certain of the highest paid B maTaoagMEE R
employees and senior management as disclosed = AR E R B B 3B B R Y 5
in note 10, is as follows: T10HEEIT ¢

2015 2014
—E-REF —ZT—F
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Short-term employee benefits = HES R 2,421 1,351
Post-employment benefits BRELAE T 46 23
2,467 1,374
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” FEeEst A [B TR | (B
(see note 7(b)). BisE7(b)) o
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25 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(0

(continued)

The related party transactions in respect of rental
expenses paid to a related company and the
remuneration of directors and chief executive of
the Company constitute connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, these transactions are exempt from
reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of the
remuneration of key management personnel
(other than directors and chief executive) of the
Company did not fall under the definition of
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of the
amounts due from shareholders and loans from
shareholders as set out on notes 14(iii) and 20
respectively constitute connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, these transactions are exempt from
reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

25 BERBEELERS ()

(b)

(o)

(%)

HEN—HEBERRNES
RARBREERTETHA
SHME AL R 5E
B E AR A 14AE S E R
R AT ZERFHE
HRdT ETRRE14ATIR
TEHH  AERBIREL
HERE °

HARNRETEEEAB(ES
NKEBITHRABRIN HNE
BREs A RSB L
HAEVAERTENEER S
SFEEERS -

ERRTEE 14(i) 2 20 Frk fE U ik
RIEBEREWKKEEZRGH
HIREE 5 2 SR £ A8 Al
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106

directors on 26 June 2015

Lau Pak Man
Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

26 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 26 2XREMEZEEARRE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2015
—E-HF
Note $'000
i3 Fr
Non-current asset FREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHB AR ZRE 3 -* |
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries BT /B A Bl 5RIE 93,516
Prepayment and other receivables — FE{< kI8 & H fth jiE U 5108 2,502
96,018
Current liability nREAE
Other payables H A fER5RIE (3,124)
Net current assets rneg&E®&e 92,894
NET ASSETS EEFRE 92,894
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR S 21(a)
Share capital 1IN 21(c) 6,400
Reserves et 86,494
TOTAL EQUITY R 92,894
* Represents $8 * 1887

R-ZE—RFENA-t+BEE=
oL IR T3

27 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE

REPORTING PERIOD

(@  On 16 April 2015, the Company was successfully
listed on the Stock Exchange following the
completion of its share offer of 230,000,000
shares (including exercise of over-allotment
options) issued at a price of $0.66 per share. The
Company received net proceeds of approximately
$99,477,000 (after deducting issuing expenses)
in respect of the Listing. No adjustments have
been made to these financial statements as a
result of the Listing.
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27

28

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE 27

REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(b)  After the end of the reporting period the
directors proposed a final dividend. Further
details are disclosed in note 21(b).

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2015

Up to the date of issue of the financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2015 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

28

B A F 3

£E (&)

() REEHKE  EFEZHE
ERIABE o —FHER
P35 21 (0) 22 ©

RBE-Z-—HF=A
=+—-HLEFEERME
5] R AE BB RT ~ # R 2
AR REN TR E

BHHREHRR

BEETBEAMBRE  BEGETE
ARECRH—FINBE—_FT -4
FZA=T—RIEFERRERH
5T R 37 T 25 RI) B30 8 770 7% B 765 4
RPRP - ZFERT RFFTEANE
RN R BE B AR EAHRE ¢

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUT BB z2%
BmEsH LN
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle 1 July 2014
—E—EFF T R E B IR ER 6 R —mE+H—H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle 1 July 2014
—E 5 T FFERNEEN RS LR FREIE —ZE-mE+HA—H

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

ZE—F R F YRR E B IR R a F R

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation

BB EETERAIE 16 7 R & B E712ERE 38 9% (185T4) -
HTE REHH A Z X7 %0 808

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

ERUBMELRE 155 KEHEL A0 Kz

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BERMBHMELENEIR - £HTA

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. The Group is therefore unable to disclose
the impact that adopting the amendments and new
standards will have on its financial statements when
such amendments and new standards are adopted.

1 January 2016
—E—R"F—-HA—H

1 January 2016
—T—R¥—H—H

1 January 2017
—E—+F—H—H

1 January 2018
—E-N\E—H—H

$%§Eﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ§%ﬁ%%ﬁ
B2 SR KA RTERIM R E
It - ANER [ i R B &ﬁm%%ﬁ@
f 7] M RT RS - BRANERT S
AR E B SRR

REZEZERERAT

—E-REER
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Financial Summary
BBREE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AZ7T57R)

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the ~ RNEESIVNEN KEENEEREEN
Group for the last four financial years is as follows. BEMENOT

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=t—-HILEE

2012 2013 2014 2015
- —E-=f —Z—mNFE ZE-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T T Fr
RESULTS E35
Revenue WA 365,909 468,117 381,750 386,719
Profit before taxation BRE AT @ A 70,618 95,027 73,136 89,376
Income tax FTiEHt (11,773) (15,726) (12,159) (16,723)
Profit and total comprehensive R F 2 2 ERA 4858

income for the year 58,845 79,301 60,977 72,653
At 31 March
R=ZA=+—H
2012 2013 2014 2015
—F--F —ZT-=fF —T-F ZE-EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T T Fr
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEE 288,223 349,024 405,244 289,631
Total liabilities BaE (123,383) (207,183) (202,426) (140,850)
Net assets BEFE 164,840 141,841 202,818 148,781

This report is published in both English and Chinese  ANERENHEXREZES R - £REX
languages. Should there be any inconsistency between the — BER)EERA TR RIS EET - LASUAYE o
Chinese and English versions, the English version shall prevail.
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